
CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL 
WORK SESSION 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2016- 7:00P.M. 
CITY HALL ANNEX 
520 MAIN STREET 

AGENDA 

I. CALL WORK SESSION TO ORDER 

II. ITEMS FOR REVIEW AND DISCUSSION 

A. Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding with Raymore on the 
ovvnership, operations, and maintenance of Hwv 58 between Clint Dr. and Kentucky 
Rd. 

Jim Feuerborn, Raymore City Manager 

Page 4 

B. Show-Me Heroes Program 

Wayne Woodworth, Veterans' Representative, Department of Economic 
Development, Division of Workforce Development, will make a presentation 

Page 17 

C. Show Me PACE Program 

Jan Schumacher, Program Manager, Missouri Energy Initiative, Show Me PACE, 
and Robert Shear, President, Pace Sage LLC, will make a presentation 

Page 21 

D. Review of October 20 16 financial report 

E. Report by the Pru;k Department 

Shane DeWald and Perry Gough will make a presentation 

F. Review of Midwest Public Risk CMPR) Bylaw revisions 

Page 28 

G. Presentation and update on the 155111 Street prc:>ject 

Kate Patras will make a presentation 

Page 54 1 



H. Review of the draft FY20 18-2022 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

Page 64 

I. Other business 

III. ADJOURN WORK SESSION 

2 



) 
. ./ 

SECTION II 
A 

3 



COOPERA TTVE AGREEMENT AND 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

THIS COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT AND MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING ("MOlY') is entered into as of this day of ______ _ 
___ , 2016 by and between the City of Raymore, Missouri ("Raymore") a home rule charter 
city, and the City of Belton, Missouri ("Belton") a home rule charter city each located within Cass 
County, Missouri in order to better manage the operations and maintenance of certain public 
improvements ("Improvements") which are located along the corporate boundaries of each party. 

RECITALS 

A. Section 432.070 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri ("RSMo") provides in 
pertinent part that "[n]o county, city, town village ... or other municipal corporation shall make any 
contract, unless the same shall be within the scope of its powers or be expressly authorized by law, 
nor unless such contract be made upon a consideration wholly to be performed or executed 
subsequent to the making of the contract; and such contract, including the consideration, shall be 
in writing and dated when made, and shall be subscribed by the parties thereto, or their agents 
authorized by law and duly appointed and authorized in writing.' 

B. Section 70.220.1 RSMo authorizes any municipal or political subdivision of this 
state to "contract and cooperate with any other municipality or political subdivision ... for the 
planning, development, construction, acquisition or operation of any public improvement or 
facility, or for a common service; provided that the subject and purposes of any such contract or 
cooperative action made and entered into by such municipality or political subdivision shall be 
within the scope of the powers of such municipality or political subdivision." 

C. A portion of the corporate boundary of Raymore and a portion of the corporate 
boundary of Belton currently abut and adjoin each other along the centerline of Missouri Highway 
58 right-of-way ("M0-58") between the centerline of Clint Drive and Dean Avenue, and the 
centerline of Kentucky. Attached hereto as Exhibit "A" is an aerial photograph visually depicting 
the portion ofM0-58 which is the subject ofthis MOU. The portion ofM0-58 which is within 
the corporate municipal boundaries of Belton is legally defined and/or visually depicted on Exhibit 
"B" ("Belton Portion") attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. The portion ofM0-
58 which is within the corporate municipal boundaries of Raymore is legally defined and/or 
visually depicted on Exhibit "C" ("Raymore Portion") attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference herein. 

D. At this time, the Missouri Department of Transportation ("MODoT") maintains 
ownership and control of the combined Belton Portion and Raymore Portion ofM0-58 which said 
combined portion is legally defined and/or visually depicted on Exhibit "D" ("MODoT Area") 
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 

E. Raymore desires to acquire rights to control the MODoT Area from MODoT 
including rights and responsibilities for maintenance, development, access and traffic control of 
the MODoT Area. 

4 



F. MODoT desires to convey the rights to control the MODoT Area to Raymore 
including the rights and responsibilities for maintenance, development, access and traffic control 
of the MODoT Area pursuant to a Quit Claim Deed and a Transfer of Route 58, subject to approval 
of this MOU by Belton and Raymore. 

G. Belton agrees that it will benefit from the conveyance of rights to control the 
MODo T Area from MODoTto Raymore, including the rights and responsibilities for maintenance, 
development, access and traffic control pursuant to the proposed Quit Claim Deed and a Transfer 
of Route 58, subject to certain limitations, requirements and controls ("Limitations and Controls") 
as provided for within this MOU. 

H. This MOU is being entered by Belton and Raymore in order to comply with the 
requirements of Sections 432.070 and 70.220.1 RSMo. 

I. These Recitals are an integral part of this MOU. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and of the mutual promises 
and understandings set forth herein, Belton and Raymore, by and through their authorized 
representatives hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Belton Agreement, Responsibilities and Obligations 

a. Support Transfer of Control from MODoT to Raymore. Belton agrees 
that it will support the transfer of maintenance obligations and right-of-way pursuant to the 
proposed Quit Claim Deed and Transfer of Route 58 over the MODoT Area, including the 
Belton Portion, from MODoT to Raymore. This support will include provision of any 
reasonable documentation and affirmations required by MODoTto confirm this MOU and 
may be provided by the submission of letters of support and/or provision of testimony to 
MODoT representatives, personnel and employees. 

b. Access. Belton agrees that it will allow unimpeded access for the Raymore 
Public Works employees, contractors, personnel and agents to complete all responsibilities 
undertaken by Raymore under this MOU including maintenance, construction, installation, 
repair and replacement of the Improvements within the Belton Portion. The Improvements 
shall include the public infrastructure within the Belton Portion including the M0-58 road 
bed, streets, street curbs, sidewalks, paving, gutters, storm drain inlets and pipes, street 
signage, traffic signal devices (if any), other regulatory signage and pedestrian walkways. 
These Improvements shall specifically exclude any Belton utility services such as water 
service lines/mains and sanitary sewer lines ("Belton Utility Service"). 

c. Traffic and Municipal Ordinance Enforcement Within Belton Portion. 
Belton shall continue to enforce the Belton municipal code of ordinances within the Belton 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page2 

5 



Portion including, but not limited to, any traffic code or other ordinances adopted for the 
operation of vehicles on the public streets. This includes accident response and issuance 
of appropriate citations for violations of the Belton municipal code of ordinances. 

d. Notification of Impediments to Access. Belton shall provide forty-eight 
( 48) hours advance notice to Raymore of any anticipated impediments to access of the 
Belton Portion ("Anticipated Impediments") for maintenance, construction, installation, 
repair and replacement of Belton Utility Service. In the event of an emergency repair of 
Belton Utility Service causing an impediment ("Emergency Impediment"), Belton shall 
notify Raymore as soon as reasonably possible of the same. The notification required 
hereunder shall include the time of the closure/impediment, anticipated reopening/removal 
of the impediment and a general location of the closure/impediment within the Belton 
Portion. 

e. Repair and Replacement After Utility Service. In the event that Belton 
accesses the Belton Portion for maintenance, construction, repair and replacement of any 
Belton Utility Service, Belton shall be responsible (at their costs) for returning the impacted 
ground and/or Improvements to their original condition, or as close thereto as reasonably 
possible within a reasonable time not to exceed four (4) months. 

2. Raymore Agreement, Responsibilities and Obligations 

a. Maintain, Construct, Install, Repair and Replace Improvements. 
Except as provided by Section 1 (e) above for repair and replacement of the impacted 
ground and/or Improvements by Belton following Belton Utility Service, Raymore shall 
be solely responsible for all ofthe expense of labor, materials and equipment to maintain, 
construct, install, repair and replace all of the Improvements within the Belton Portion of 
M0-58, including the M0-58 road bed, streets, street curbs, sidewalks, paving, gutters, 
storm drain inlets and pipes, street signage, traffic signal devices (if any), other regulatory 
signage and pedestrian walkways. These Improvements shall specifically exclude any 
Belton Utility Service. Maintenance, construction, repair and replacement of all 
Improvements by Raymore shall be completed as needed (at Raymore's sole discretion) to 
maintain traffic safety, and when regularly scheduled maintenance is performed upon the 
Raymore Portion. 

b. Make No Modifications/Alterations. Raymore agrees that it will not 
modify or otherwise alter any portion of M0-58 subject to this MOU either within the 
Belton Portion or within the Raymore Portion in a manner that permanently affects or 
impacts the accessibility ofBelton property owners onto M0-58 without the prior approval 
of Belton. By this MOU, modifications or alterations include, but are not limited to, 

1. Modifications or alterations of the current full access points (if any) 
onto any portion ofM0-58 subject to this MOU, 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page 3 

6 



ii. Installation of medians within the centerline of any portion of M0-
58 subject to this MOU, 

m. Widening or narrowing of any portion of M0-58 subject to this 
MOU, 

IV. Installation of traffic control devices within any portion of M0-58 
subject to this MOU, 

v. Imposition of different speed limits within any portion of M0-58 
subject to this MOU, and 

v1. Modifications or alterations of the current limited access points (if 
any) onto any portion ofM0-58 subject to this MOU. 

c. Snow Removal/Street Sweeping. Raymore shall perform snow removal, 
pre-treatment for ice and street sweeping on the Belton Portion at the same interval, and 
when performed on the Raymore Portion. 

d. Notification oflmpediments to Access. Raymore shall provide forty-eight 
(48) hours advance notice to Belton of any anticipated impediments to access ofthe Belton 
Portion ("Anticipated Impediments") for maintenance, construction, installation, repair 
and replacement of any Improvements. In the event of an emergency repair of 
Improvements causing an impediment ("Emergency Impediment"), Raymore shall notify 
Belton as soon as reasonably possible of the same. The notification required hereunder 
shall include the time of the closure/impediment, anticipated reopening/removal of the 
impediment and a general location of the closure/impediment within the Belton Portion. 

e. Provide Access to All Belton Utility Easements. Raymore shall provide, 
and Belton shall have, full access to any and all established easements within the Belton 
Portion for maintenance, construction, installation, repair and replacement of Belton Utility 
Easements subject only to the notice provisions of Section 1 (d) above. 

f. Completion and Provision of Comprehensive Traffic Study. Raymore 
shall complete a comprehensive traffic study ("Traffic Study") to include both the Raymore 
Portion and the Belton Portion, and the area immediately surrounding the same. Raymore 
agrees that it will complete the Traffic Study at its costs. Raymore may complete the 
Traffic Study at its discretion any time after the effective date of this MOU, but in any 
event within twenty-four (24) months of the occurrence of two (2) triggering events 
("Events"). The two (2) Events requiring the completion of the Traffic Study shall be as 
follows: (i) the full development of the property known as the Dean Farm (directly abutting 
and south of the Raymore Portion, and (ii) the opening of the newly aligned Kentucky 
Road at the signalized intersection East of the Raymore Portion and the Belton Portion of 
M0-58. Belton shall be provided with a copy of the Traffic Study by Raymore upon 
completion ofthe same. 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page 4 

7 



3. Miscellaneous Provision 

a. Amendment I Modification. This MOU shall not be amended, modified 
or cancelled without the written consent of the parties to this MOU. 

b. Notices. All notices required by this MOU shall be in writing sent by 
regular U.S. mail, postage prepaid, or delivered by courier to the following: 

RAYMORE: 

BELTON 

All notices are effective on the date mailed or upon receipt if delivered by a courier. Either 
party may provide the other party a change of address which change shall be effective ten 
(10) days after delivery. 

c. Counterparts. This MOU may be executed in counterparts, each of which 
is deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

d. Severability. Except as specifically provided in this MOU, all of the 
provisions of this MOU shall be severable. In the event that any one or more provision of 
this M 0 U is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or unlawful, 
the remaining provisions of this MOU shall be valid unless the court finds that the valid 
provisions of this MOU are so essentially and inseparably connected with and so dependent 
upon the invalid provision(s) that it cannot be presumed that the parties to this MOU could 
have included the valid provisions without the invalid provision(s); or unless the court finds 
that the valid provisions, standing alone, are incapable of being performed in accordance 
with the intentions of the parties. 

e. Default I Enforcement I Remedies. If a party shall be in default or breach 
of any provision of this MOU, the other party may terminate this MOU, suspend its 
performance and invoke any other legal or equitable remedy after giving the other party 
thirty (30) days written notice and opportunity to correct/cure such default or breach. All 
rights and remedies granted to each party herein and any other rights and remedies which 
either party may have at law and in equity are hereby declared to be cumulative and not 
exclusive, and the fact that either party may have exercised any remedy without terminating 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page 5 

8 



this MOU shall not impair that party's rights thereafter to terminate or to exercise any other 
remedy herein granted or to which that party may be otherwise entitled. 

f. Governing Law I Jurisdiction & Venue. This MOU shall be construed 
and governed in accordance with the law of the State of Missouri. The parties submit to 
the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Missouri and specifically, the Circuit Court of 
Cass County, Missouri. 

g. Waiver. Waiver by either party of strict performance of any provision of 
this MOU shall not waive or prejudice the party's right to require strict performance of the 
same provision or any other provision in the future. 

h. Attorneys' Fees. If any litigation is commenced between the parties to this 
MOU concerning the terms herein, the Belton Portion, the Raymore Portion, the 
Improvements (including the maintenance, construction, repair, replacement, snow 
removal, sweeping and access to the same) this Agreement, or the rights and duties of either 
party, the prevailing party in that litigation shall be entitled, in addition to any other relief 
that may be granted in the litigation, to a reasonable sum for that party's attorney's fees, 
including attorney's fees on appeal. The amount of the fees shall be determined by the 
court in that litigation or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

i. Entire Agreement. This MOU and the attached and incorporated Exhibits 
herein contains the entire agreement of the parties regarding the subject matter of this MOU 
and there are no other promises or conditions in any other agreements between the parties 
not specifically expressed herein. 

j. Nature of Relationship. It is expressly understood that the parties are not 
now, nor will they be, engaged in a joint venture, partnership or any other form of business 
relationship except as expressly set forth herein, and that no party shall be responsible for 
the conduct, warranties, guarantees, acts, errors, omissions, debts, obligations or 
undertaking of any kind or nature of the other in performance of this MOU. 

k. Captions I Headings I Construction. The headings of each section of this 
MOU are for reference only. Unless the context of this MOU clearly requires otherwise, 
all terms and words used herein, regardless of the number and gender in which used, shall 
be construed to include any other number, singular or plural, or any other gender, 
masculine, feminine or neuter, the same as if such words had been fully and properly 
written in that number or gender. 

1. Assignment. Neither Raymore nor Belton shall sell, assign, transfer, or 
otherwise convey any of their rights under this MOU without the prior and expressed 
written consent ofthe other party. Each party may, at its sole discretion, refuse to consent 
to any proposed sale, assignment, transfer or other conveyance. Any attempted sale, 
assignment, transfer or conveyance in violation of this paragraph shall be void and shall 
relieve the non-consenting party of any further liability under this MOU, but shall not 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page 6 

9 



relieve the violating party of any liability. If a party consents in writing to a sale, 
assignment, transfer or conveyance, unless specifically stated to the contrary in the consent, 
it shall not release nor discharge the party receiving consent from any duty or responsibility 
set forth in this MOU. 

m. Representations. Raymore and Belton certify that they have the power and 
authority to execute and deliver this MOU and to undertake all responsibilities, obligations, 
rights and duties contemplated hereby and to perform this MOU in accordance with its 
terms. 

n. Records of Agreement. The City Clerk's office for each respective city 
shall be provided with a copy of this executed MOU. 

o. Binding Agreement. This MOU shall be binding upon, and shall inure to 
the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns and 
designees. 

p. Cooperation. The parties agree to cooperate to effectuate the terms of this 
MOU. The parties also agree to refrain from unnecessarily prejudicing the position, or 
hindering the ability of any party to complete their requirements, conditions and obligations 
under this MOU. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this MOU to be executed in their 
respective names as of the date and year first above written. 

CITY OF RAYMORE, MISSOURI CITY OF BEL TON, MISSOURI 

By: ____________ _ By: _______ _____ _ 

Title: _______ ______ _ Title: _____________ _ 

ATTEST: ATTEST: 

By: ____________ _ By: ____________ _ 

Title: _____________ _ Title: ------------------
Ordinance No.: _______________ _ Ordinance No.: __________ _ 

Approved as to Form: Approved as to Form: 

By: ___________ __ _ By: ____________ _ 

Title: _____________ _ Title: _____________ _ 

Cooperative Agreement and Memora11dum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page 7 

10 



STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF CASS ) 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this day of 2016, before me the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State aforesaid, came ______ _ 
-------- --------Director of Public Works for Raymore, Missouri, a 
municipal corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of 
Missouri, and City Clerk for Raymore, Missouri who are 
personally known to me to be the same persons who executed as officials, the within instrument 
on behalf of said municipal corporation, and such persons duly acknowledge the execution of the 
same to be the act and deed of said municipal corporation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and 
year last above written. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF CASS ) 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this day of 2016, before me the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State aforesaid, came ______ _ 
- ---------------Director of Public Works for Belton, Missouri, a 
municipal corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of 
Missouri, and City Clerk for Belton, Missouri who are personally 
known to me to be the same persons who executed as officials, the within instrument on behalf of 
said municipal corporation, and such persons duly acknowledge the execution of the same to be 
the act and deed of said municipal corporation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and 
year last above written. 

My Commission Expires: 
Notary Public 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page 8 

11 



EXHIBIT "A" 
Aerial Photo With General Depiction of Affected M0-58 

I ·· .~~ 58HwyTransfer ·Y .. · . · \' ~;j· ·.; .. s:.· 
. . --,.' ,:/1\' ivl! ll; i rvw .· .r lLJt :! 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore_ I.~ of Belton 

Png~ 

1 
12 



u 
EXHIBIT "B" 

Visual Depiction of Belton Portion 

""""'TII.j.lnD::Jnf? 
"t<;-"'1111\/tto;t,u&I<US 
Y,IW>I<II.ION!Io,jlf'l•~rlV 

~Z[ •IIIJ 01- d•~ I"'~ 
~~lti.M'>N•'(II"'~>"d~ 

. I 
I 

I' 

''"' .,., ..,... . 

,. 
II , 
I' 

" I ; .... ,, 

! 
' ' 
' 
' ' 

' I 
1: I 
~~ j 

' ~ 
f ! ~~~'> 
i ·~, 

' 
' i I 

i Jil i 
i tl/~ 
r-~-M-
~·--1~-~-

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Pager; O 

13 

SNOI1n1 

! I I J 

~ I! liHiill 
~ '' ·11 II lli 



EXHIBIT "C" 
Visual Depiction of Raymore Portion 

I .. 
11 

\; 

.I 
~ I • 

' ' f' : "-x 
. ~ ..... --~ 
' ~ 1

1
1 

1\ 

-r~, ·t·\\ 
i 
' 
' 
! 

1: 
I 

! I 

~ 
I 

1 "·~;-
1 ~ 
i ' 
I 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore ICily of Belton 

Pag~ 
II 

14 



EXHIBIT "D" 
Visual Depiction ofMODoT Area 

..,~..,,..-..v 

'f.tf ...... *l't-a 
,.,.......... ... ,.-.t'JI 

~~ 

r 

.... 

" 

,_ 
: 
I 
I 

,. , •.. . ._:,.. .... _ 
' 
' 
' ' 
~ 

i i 
I 

I n 
1: 

: .. ~-~ 
·-t :--•·t 

' . ) I 

: j 
! I 
! I 
I . 

' ! I. 

: i' 

1 ., 
I ! ~~ .... 
1 ! '} 
I ' 
! 
• I 

i 
' ' I I' ' /l f 

JP.~ 
! +~" -
l---l~:io--

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum ofUr1derstanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Pag~ 
12..... 

15 

!jl) 
It 

i I 
I 

ill! 
hIll ff 



SEC ION II 
B 

16 



CITY OF BEL TON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

MEETING DATE: December 6, 2016 
ASSIGNED STAFF: Jay C. Leipzig, AICP- Director- Community and Economic Development 

D Ordinance D Resolution D Consent Item D Change Order 
D Agreement ~ Discussion D FYI/Update D Public Hearing 

ISSUE 
Wayne Woodworth, Veterans' Representative with the Missouri Department of Economic 
Development, Division of Workforce Development would like to present the Show-Me Heroes 
program. This program promotes the hiring of Veterans and offers incentives to employers who 
do so. He would like to request that the City of Belton sign the pledge to hire Veterans as well as 
provide a link on the City's Economic Development website for the purpose of marketing the 
program to local employers. 

REQUESTED COUNCJL ACTION 
Determine ifthe City of Belton wishes to sign the pledge and become a Show-Me Heroes 
supporting employer. 

BACKGROUND 
Show-Me Heroes was started by Governor Nixon in 2010 and is a cooperative effort between the 
Missouri National Guard and the Missouri Division of Workforce Development. The mission of 
this program is to connect Missouri's businesses, both public and private, with highly qualified 
job seekers with military experience and to promote the benefits of hiring Veterans and National 
Guard and Reserve Service Members. The following are incentives available: 

Show-Me Heroes On-the-Job Training (OJT) is designed to offset the costs associated with 
onboarding. If an organization qualifies, 50% of the wages for the new employee (up to 1040 
hours) is reimbursable. 

Work Opportunity Tax Credits (WOTC) is a Federal tax credit available to employers for hiring 
individuals from certain target groups who have consistently faced significant barriers to 
employment. There are several degrees of eligibility offering maximum credits of $1,200 to 
$9,600. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Sign the pledge to hire Veterans. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Show-Me Heroes Work Opportunity Tax Credit PDF 
Show-Me Heroes On-the-Job-Training PDF 

17 



HEROES Emolover Tax Tips 
Employers: Take advantage of tax credits for hiring veteran employees! Hiring an unemployed 
veteran can qualify you for federal income-tax credits ranging from hundreds of dollars up to$9,600 per new hire!* 

Hires that qualify for the Work Opportunity Tax Credit (WOTC) include ... 
Food Stamp I Hiring an unemployed veteran whose family has received food stamps for any 

Recipient consecutive three months during the 15-month period ending on the hire date. 

Short-term I Hiring a veteran who has been unemployed for at least four weeks out of the 
Unemployed past 52 weeks. 

Long-term I Hiring a veteran who has been unemployed for at least six months out of the 
Unemployed past 12 months. 

Disabled/ I Hiring a veteran with a service-connected disability (10% or more) within one 
Recent Discharge year of discharge from active duty. 

Disabled/ I Hiring a veteran with a service-connected disability (10% or more) who has 
long Unemployed been unemployed more than six months. 

*Depending on the target group claimed and the actual number of hours the employee worked in the tax year. 

The Division of Workforce Development's WOTC Unit will assist your filing for FREE! 

(800) 877-8698 

Call or email the WOTC Unit to request 
your free Business Guide to the Work 
Opportunity Tax Credit Program. 

The WOTC Unit will send you the free 
guide containing all the tax forms you'll 
need. Add a copy of the veteran's DD-214. 

Additional benefits of the Work Opportunity Tax Credit: 

Complete and mail the forms 
back. If all dates, signatures, and 
documentation are correct, the 
WOTC Unit will send you an Employer 
Certification Letter to give to your 
accountant to claim your tax credit(s). 

+ There is no limit on the number of qualifying new hires you can take federal income-tax credit for in a tax year. 

+ There is no cap on the total dollar amount of federal income-tax credits you can receive for those new hires in a tax year. 

+ In addition to the five veterans categories, there are eight other qualifying categories of job seekers facing barriers to 
employment. You may be eligible for tax credit for new hires from these groups, as well. Contact the WOTC Unit to learn more! 

For more information on hiring 
veterans, contact us at: 
showmeheroes@ded.mo.gov 

Learn more at: 
showmeheroes.mo.gov 

Or Call: 1.-800-592-6020 

Your next employee 
is waiting for you 

at ... 

Show-Me Heroes is administered by the Missouri Division of Workforce Development in partnership with the Missouri National Guard. 

Missouri Division of Workforce Development is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available 
upon request to individuals with disabilities. Missouri TTY Users can call (800) 735-2966 or dial7-1-1. 

18 



HEROES On-the-Job-Training 
Helping Your Business! Show-Me Heroes offers On-the-Job Training (OJl) 

to help your business save costs while preparing new hires for your vital jobs. 

The OJT Program Provides ... 

Cost Savings: We reimburse 50% of the wages of workers hired through this 
program for up to 1040 hours of OJT. 

Excellent We connect you with workers that possess a proven work 
Employees: ethic and a variety of valuable skills gained from military 

service, prior employment, and education. 

Convenience: Based on the job requirements, we match your business with 
a skilled new hire and provide ongoing guidance and support. 

OJT Program Steps 

__ .... ..... ..... ___ 

_.. ...- Identify potential participants who 
are: referred through a Career 
Center or are reverse-referred by 

Contact your nearest Missouri Career Center you to a career Center. 
to confirm your eligibility. 

Your Business Can Participate If: 

Develop, complete and sign the 
training agreement prior to the 
start date of the OJT employee. 

• Your business has taken the Show-Me Heroes Pledge. You can take the pledge at showmeheroes.mo.gov. 

• OJT position is permanent and full-time (32+ hours per week) 

• Your business participates in E-Verify. You can learn more about E-Verify at www.uscis.gov/e-verify. 

• Contact us to learn more! 

Veterans and Spouses 
Can Participate If: 
Most service members who are honorably 
discharged and are within one year of their 
discharge date OR spouses of currently 
deployed or recently discharged eligible 
service members can participate. 
Contact us to learn more! 

Contact us at: 
showmeheroes@ded.mo.gov 

Learn more at: 
Showmeheroes.mo.gov 

And 

o.gov 

Or Call: 1-800-592-6020 

Show-Me Heroes is administered by the Missouri Division of Workforce Development in partnership with the Missouri National Guard . 

Missouri Division of Workforce Development is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available 
upon request to individuals with disabilities. Missouri TIY Users can call (800) 735-2966 or dial 7-1-1. 

19 



SECTION II 
C · 

20 



CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

MEETING DATE: December 6, 2016 
ASSIGNED STAFF: Jay C. Leipzig, AICP- Director- Community and Economic Development 

D Ordinance D Resolution D Consent Item D Change Order 
D Agreement rgJ Discussion [ ] FYI/Update D Public Hearing 

ISSUE 
PACE (Property Assessed Clean Energy) is a financing mechanism that allows property owners 
(commercial, industrial, agricultural, non-profits and government facilities) the opportunity to 
borrow money, with little to no upfront cost, to install or retrofit renewable energy and energy 
efficiency conservation measures. Participation in PACE financing promotes economic 
development, creates jobs and saves energy. 

There are three PACE districts in the state of Missouri. State statute requires a municipality to 
pass an ordinance in order for a PACE district to operate in that jurisdiction. Municipalities can 
participate in more than one clean energy district. 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION 
Approve the ordinance to join the Show Me Pace district on the December 13 regular City 
Council meeting. 

BACKGROUND 
PACE financing is a program that provides financing for upfront costs of energy efficiency 
upgrades, renewable energy upgrades and energy audits. The financing comes through private 
funds and is repaid through annual property assessments. The assessments are tied directly to a 
property and repaid via the property tax bill over a period of up to 22 years. The voluntary 
assessment, which is secured by a senior lien on the property, does not require an upfront 
payment. Because the assessment and lien are tied directly to the property, they can be 
transferred upon sale. 

There are currently three PACE districts in the state of Missouri: Show ME Pace, Missouri Clean 
Energy District, and Set the PACE St. Louis. This allows for an open market PACE program. In 
2014 Belton passed an ordinance to join the Missouri Clean Energy District. By passing an 
ordinance to join the Show Me Pace district, Belton insures its property owners an open market. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the ordinance to join the Show Me Pace district on the December 13 regular City 
Council meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Show Me PACE Flier 
PACE Article, MML Review Magazine (January 2016) 

21 



S OWME 
238 East High St., 

3rd Floor 
Jefferson City, MO 65101 
573-616-1046 
jan@moenergy.org 
www.ShowMePace.org 

PACE = Property Assessed Clean Energy 
Economic development through open-market financing for 

energy efficiency, water conservation and renewable energy projects 

Annual energy savings must exceed annual assessment 
which makes the project economically viable 

PACE financing is all private funds - no taxpayer money is used 

Eligible projects PACE financing 
is available for: 

Commercial 
Industrial 

Agriculture 
Non-profits 

Govt. facilities 

Lighting W Windows 'Water-saving 

::::>~ Roofs 
I~ ~I 

--· -: HVAC 

Role of local gover·nmemt 
State statute requires a municipa-~ity t0 pass an ordinance in order for 
Show Me PACE Clean Energy Distrli.ct* to operate in that jurisdiction. 
Municipal'ities can participate flil mor-e tllan one clean energy district. 

Local communities pani.cipate im .PACE to promote economic 
development, create jobs a·nd sa¥e energy. 

There is NO obligation, exposure or liability for the municipality. 

Solar 

To avoid placing a burden orn COW\ril'ty oonectors, Show Me PACE uses third-party 
collection of the annual assessment for commercial projects. 

Each participating munici.pa.lity has the tlp.portunity to provide insight and c:werrs~hlt ~o 
the district via the Show Me PACE ACfVJisory Board. 

*Show Me PACE Clean Energy District is a political s~:~bdfv,isiom 

22 



Financing provided by Show Me PACE 
lenders/funding partners: 

• can pay for 100% of a project's costs 

• is on-demand cash 

• has a fixed interest rate 

• can stay with the building upon sale 

• is considered "off-book" on a firm's balance sheet 

• does not require personal guarantees or out-of
pocket equity investment 

• ts reparid with an annual assessment over a ternn 
of up to 20 years 

• is all private capital- no taxpayer funds 

Consumer protections 
Show Me PACE requires the following 
for project approval: 

0 No real estate delinquencies by the 
property owner for the last 3 years. 

0 No notices of default or foreclosure 
against the property for the past 5 years. 

0 Property owner has not declared 
bankruptcy in the last 5 years. 

0 Property owner is solvent and has no 
significant pending legal action. ~ 

0 Lender consent from the 
primary mortgage holder. 

Show Me PACE Lenders P5:TADS 

Ul y T W A.J. f':l .. ~ .. ::: CLEAN FUND 
: • Commerc ~I PACE Copi ol 

What makes Show Me PACE unique? 
• n·onprofit with tow fees • on-demar~d cash ep pen market program 

• requires lender consent • third-party collectiom • t ransparent 

Learn more at our website www.showmepace.org or contact 
P'rogram. Manager Jan Schumacher jan@moenergy.org, 573-616·1·046 

SMP FEES 

<$500,00 I = 1.25% w/ $3,125 Min.* 

>$500,00 I = I% w/ $20,000 Cap* 

Annual Collection Capped at $500 

' FOR 5rANDAAD CONTPAaS 

SHOW ME PACE}'(_,. is .a clea.n energy d!~tri~t administer~d by the . 
'' M1ssoun Energy ln1t1at1ve, a nonpartisan, nonprofit 

association of public and private sector energy entities. MEl works to increase 
support for energy-related economic development, innovation and education. 

23 



MISSOURI PACE PROGRAMS: 
BUILDING CLEANER COMMUNITIES 

By Juliet Mee 

C lenu energy was positioned firmly 011 tl1e front page of evenJ mnvspaper duriug the December 2015 Climnte Summit in 
Paris. Communities tltmugholtl Missouri lurue been actively working to put measures iu place that reduce energJJ costs 
wltile also reducing greenlwuse gasses. 

Replacing old, inefficient heating, cooling, and water systems witl1 new 11igl1-efficiency units makes co111111011 sense. 
Improving efficiency through retrofits, new construction, and property redevelopment creates jobs. These concepts are t11e 
low-lwnging fruit of tlte clean energy discussion; easy to talk about, sweet to eat. However, for Missouri's mwticipal leaders 
c1rarged wit/1 creating clean energy outcomes and driving the local economies, the missing essential component ltas been the 
lack of financing options. 

Property owners and developers often postpone or piecemeal renovations a11d new com;truction due to fiJUmcial obstacles 
suc/1 as: lack of capital for upfront engineering costs, requirements for personal guarantees, or lack of longer-term financing 
options. 

Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) financing changes all of tlwt. Municipal finance administrators and economic 
development professionals in Missouri use this innovative tool to encourage local commercial property owners to invest in tl1eir 
properties that include switching to clean energy, reducing greenhouse gasses or simply replacing outdated systems. PACE 
programs have emerged as one of the most important imwvntive solutions for mtmicipalities to help tile commercial sector fimd 
tl1e switch to clean energ~J solutions. In fact, PACE was named one of the top "world clwnging ideas" by Scientific American 
magazine. 

This article will focus on commercial npplicatio11s of PACE financing. It addresses the key concepts of PACE fi'llancing, 
identifies first steps for municipalities to become eligible to bring this type of funding into tl~eir community, and provides 
resortrces for finther investigation. 

WHAT Is PACE AND WHY SHOULD 
WE CONSIDER USJNG IT IN OUR 
COMMUNITY? 

PACE financing is a program 
available to commercial property 
owners in Missouri, as well as 30 other 
states. The program provides financing 
for all upfront costs of energy efficient 
(EE) up grades, renewable energy 
(RE) upgrades, and energy audits 
for businesses. The financing comes 
through private funds and is repaid 
through annual property assessments. 
Property owners can finance 100 percent 
of a project up front and then repay 
their financing through annual property 
assessments; this makes both retrofits 
and new construction of energy-efficient 
measures affordable. By eliminating the 
obstacles to reasonable financing, PACE 
also provides the funding necessary 
to stimulate local job growth. These 
jobs further promote the clean energy 
movement within Missouri. Property 
owners across the nation are using 
PACE because it saves them money and 
makes their buildings more valuable. 
PACE financing stays with the building 
upon sale and is easy to share with 
tenants. State and local governments 

6 / January 2016 

sponsor PACE financing to create jobs, 
promote economic development and 
protect the environment. 

WHAT CAN PACE PAY FoR? 
PACE can pay for any item that 

improves the energy-efficiency of a 
building above and beyond what is 
required by code. This includes, but is 
not limited to: new heating and cooling 
systems, lighting improvements, solar 
panels, water pumps, insulation, and 
almost any improvement affixed to a 
commercial property - large and small 
commercial, industrial, non-profit, and 
agricultural. 

Do You HAVE To BE WoRKING 
TowARD LEED CERTIFICATION FoR 
YouR BUILDING To UsE PACE 
FINANCING? 

No. Leadership in Energy 
and Environmental Design (LEED) 
certification does not impact the 
financing. The key requirement is that 
the improvement provides energy and 
maintenance savings above and beyond 
what is required by local code. 

The Missouri Mmzicipa~~eview 

Is PACE AVAILABLE FoR 
RESIDENTIAL USE IN MISSOURI? 

Although the issue continues to 
be discussed, PACE financing is not 
available at this time for the residential 
sector. Residential PACE programs 
across the nation have been suspended 
or not moving forward until further 
clarification is received from the Federal 
Housing Financing Agency. 

How DoEs PAcE WoRK? 
Municipalities and counties join 

PACE districts to collectively and 
efficiently administer a PACE program. 
The district insures that the project is 
compliant with state laws. The district 
is responsible for handling day-to-day 
PACE financing application reviews 
and approvals, as well as payment 
and collections on behalf of the PACE 
Commission. 

There are currently three districts 
in the state of Missouri: Show Me PACE, 
Missouri Clean Energy District, and Set 
the PACE St. Louis. This establishes 
an open market PACE program where 
communities can join any district they 
choose. Communities may join a single 
district or multiple districts. 

www .mocities.com 



PACE FUNDING DISTRIBUTION 

1. 100% Project funding ..----- rw 1 Eqlul y 1 
Fin diH;e Pr·nvi ,h: r 

4. City remits payment to 
finance provider 

2. Customer authorizes 
disbursements to 

contractors 

Each state must pass enabling 
legislation that allows local governments 
to offer PACE financing to building 
owners. The Missouri legislature 
enacted the PACE legislation in May 
of 2010. This legislation a1Iows for 
funding of clean/renewable energy 
and energy-efficient improvements 
through a property assessment. PACE 
is modeled after methods that have 
been used to fund public benefits 
such as roads, sidewalks, and fire 
departments. Municipalities then 
choose to participate in PACE funding 
by passing an ordinance electing to 
participate in a clean energy district. 
Participation by a municipality is 
entirely voluntary. Each municipality 
may participate in multiple boards. 
There is no cost, liability, or exposure 
for a municipality to form or participate 
in any clean energy development 
district. 

After the framework for PACE 
has been established in a municipality, 
building owners or developers work 
with qualified PACE service providers 
to choose cost-effective projects that 
make good sense within the confines of 
the clean energy financing initiative. The 
building owner submits an application 
to the PACE district. Once the project 
has been approved, there is a traditional 
loan closing. The PACE finance provider 
then escrows the funds, and the building 
owner authorizes disbursements to the 
contractors. The contractors are chosen 
and the entire construction project 
is managed by the building owner j 
developer. The building owner then 

www.mocities.com 

3. Customer pays city/ 
district annual 

assessment 

PACE SuccEss: CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

In the middle of2015, Cambridge Engineering approached Libbey 
Malberg-Tucker, Community Services and Economic Development 
Director for the city of Chesterfield, Missouri, to investigate using 
PACE financing for an upgrade to the building that they leased within 
Chesterfield's city limits. They wanted to replace all their building 
lighting systems, as well as perform a complete HVAC systems retrofit 
to switch to more energy-efficient measures. The city of Chesterfield 
was already a member of t1te statewide Missouri Clean Energy District, 
and Cambridge was requesting that they join another district also, 
Show Me PACE. Ultimately, the city of Chesterfield became a member 
of both communities and the program was successfully funded using 
Show Me PACE. 

"I would like to pass on the information I found to other people 
involved in community economic development," said Malberg-Tucker 
about her experience with PACE financing. "ln our experience, tltere 
is no cost, liabilihj, or exposure to Chesterfield or any other community 
by 1taving PACE available. ln addition, all the work to complete the 
financing of the project is done by t1te financing districts and PACE 
finance providers. There was no burden on our staff, and throughout tlte 
process, we couldn't come up with any reason to not do this. Initially 
we were only a member of the Missouri Clean EnergJJ District and we 
found them to be better in dealing with larger projects. Since this was 
a smaller project, we felt that Show Me PACE tvas a better fit as they 
could complete the funding for a project this size in a more streamlined, 
cost-effective manner. We are glad to have PACE in our community 
and to be a member of both districts." 

Tire Misso11ri MJ.I!Jidpal Re11iew January 2016 I 7 



pays the municipality the annual 
assessment that is a line item on 
their annual property tax bill. The 
municipality then remits the payment 
to the finance provider. 

WHERE Is PACE AvAILABLE IN 
MISSOURI? 

The Missouri General Assembly 
enacted legislation allowing local 
government entities to raise money 
through the issuance of bonds or 
other sources of capital to fund energy 
efficiency and renewable energy 
projects to eligible property owners in 
2011. Since then, 49 municipalities and 
counties have participated in PACE. 

WHAT Is THE FIRST STEP To BECOME 
ELIGIBLE To OFFER PACE? 

The community should have the 
city administrator or head of economic 
development contact the Show Me 
PACE Clean Energy District (www. 
showmepace.org) and the Missouri 
Clean Energy District. (mced.mo.gov). 
The Clean Energy District has draft 
ordinances for cities, towns, and 
counties to use in authorizing district 
memberships. The draft ordinance is 
available at no cost to municipalities who 
wish to join as a member of a district.D 

Juliet Mee Is a market associate for PACE 
Equity. PACE Equity provides turnkey project 
development, financing, and energy engineering 
nationwide. 

8 I January 2016 

Additional Information 
About PACE Financing 

PACE Nation 
www. pacenation .• us 

United States Offi~e of Energy 
Efficiency and Renewable Energy 
http://energy.guvf eere/slsc/ 
property -assessed-dean-energy
programs 

Missouri Department of Economic 
Development 
https:/ I energy.mo.gov I energy I 
communi ties I assistance-programs I 
property-assessed!-clean-energy-(pace) 

National Assodation for PACE 
Providers 
www.pacemltion.us 

Show Me PACE 
www .showmepace.org 

Missouri Clean Energy District 
www.mced.mo.gov 

St. Louis PACE 
www .setthepacestlouis.com 

71te Missouri Mmriri-l Review ,.. .. 26 . 

Participating PACE 
Communities: 

Bel Nor 
Berkeley 
Bolivar 
Branson 
Cape Girardeau 
CassvilJe 
Char lack 
Chesterfield 
City of St. Louis 
Cole County 
Cooper County 
Doniphan 
Farmington 
Ferguson 
Galena 
Gentry County 
Greene County 
Hartville 
Hazelwood 
Hollister 
Holts Summit 
Independence 
Indian Point 
Jefferson City 
Jackson County 
Kansas City 
Kirksville 
Lamar 
Maryland Heights 
Mercer County 
Mississippi County 
Nixa 
North Kansas City 
O'Fallon 
Olivette 
Otterville 
Ozark 
Ozark County 
Park Hills 
Peculiar 
Pilot Grove 
Reeds Spring 
Springfield 
Sullivan County 
Taney County 
Town and Country 
Village of Four Seasons 
Warrensburg 
West Plains 

www.mocities.com 



SECTION II 
F 

27 



CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

Agenda Date December 6, 2016 Division/Department Administration 

Council D Regular Meeting D Work Session D Special Session 

Approvals 
D City Manager D Department Director D Attorney D Finance Director D Engineer 

D Ordinance D Resolution Consent Item D Change Order D Motion 
l J Agreement 1XJ Discussion FYI/Update D Presentation 0 Both Readings 

Issue/Recommendation 
Acknowledge and agree to Bylaw revisions set by Midwest Public Risk. Majority of revisions are for the 
purpose of clarifying and providing additional detail(s) as to such things as: 

• Definitions 
• New Member Eligibility 
• Annual Meetings (outline) 
• Quorum Voting Rights 
• Member Termination (requirement to have at least one program with MPR) 
• Board of Directors (voting requirements; election of officers; Board powers; committee 

nominations; quorum framework) 

Proposed City Council Motion 

Bacl<ground 
MPR recently completed extensive review of Bylaws. (Bylaws have not been revised since 2009) 

Impact/Analysis: N/A 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Contractor 
Amount ofRequest/Contract 
Amount Budgeted $ 
Funding Source 
Additional Funds $ 
Funding Source 
Encumbered $ 
Funds Remaining $ 

Staff Recommendation, Action, and Date 
Acknowledge and agree to Bylaw revisions set by Midwest Public Risk that will be set before the 
Council, via Resolution, at next Business Session: December 13, 2016 

List of reference documents attached: 
Bylaw with Track Change Document 
Signature Document Page 

28 



I 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
BYLAWS OF MIDWEST PUBLIC RISK OF MISSOURI 

Page 

ARTICLE l DEFINffiONS ........................ ........ ....... ............ .............. ........ ........................ I 

ARTICLE 2 NAME; PRINCIPAL OFFICE ........... .......... ............ ......... ...... ............... ....... ~J 

Section 2.1 Name; Principal Office ..... .... ............................................................. ~l 

ARTICLE 3 rNTENT; NOT BUSINESS OF INSURANCE ........................ ......... ............ 2} 

Section 3.1 Intent .................................................................................................. :t:l 

Section 3.2 Not Business Of Insurance ........................................... ...... ........... ...... . 3 

Section 3.3 Not-for-Profit Organization ................................................................. 3 

ARTICLE 4 MPR MISSOURI POWERS ......... ... ................................... .. ......... ..... ............. 3 

Section 4. I MPR Missouri Powers ............................... .. ........................................ 3 

ARTICLE 5 MEMBERS ................................... ............ ............... ...... ................ ...... .......... 45 

Section 5.1 Member Eligibility and Admission ...... ............... ............................... 45 

Section 5.2 Member Rights .............................. .................................................... . ~-~ 

Section 5.3 Member Obligations ......... .. .................................................... ........... ~{!_ 

Section 5.4 Limitations on Member Liability ....................................................... a7_ 

Section 5.5 Annual Member Meeting ................................................................... 67 

Section 5.6 Special Membership Meeting ...... ................ .......................... ........ ...... 7 

Section 5.7 Quorum; Voting Rights .................. .... .. ....... ......... .. ................ .. .......... 18 

Section 5.8 Withdrawal ......................... .......... .. ..... ....... ... ... .......... .... ... .... ...... ... .... +li 

Section 5.9 Termination ............................................................ ... ..... ...... .......... .... 82 

Section 5.10 Application of Sections 355.231 to 355.306 ofthe Act.. ................... 10 

ARTICLE 6 BOARD OF DIRECTORS ................................ ............................. ........... .... 10 

Section 6.1 

Section 6.2 

Section 6.3 

Section 6.4 

Section 6.5 

Section 6.6 

Section 6.7 

Section 6.8 

4~.;'4~•HI~•Jlll H 
~llllltlny.J.l ~MI\1 

D••-'t11tltml 1 
'1.63H.928:1ll!S $ 

Powers; Election; Vacancies ................ ................... ..................... ... ... I 0 

Director Qualifications ....................................................................... 11 

Director Compensation and Expenses .................. .. .. ..... ... ................. 11 

Board Officers .................................................................................... 11 

Board Powers .................................................................... ....... ...... ++J2 

Committees .......................... ......... ................................................. ~ l.J 

MPR Missouri Policies and Procedures ......................................... -1-31..1 
Meetings ......................... .. ... .. .... ..................................................... +J l.:! 

29 



ARTICLE 7 PRESIDENT/CEO ............................ ........................................... .......... +:H-415 

Section 7.1 President/CEO; Appointment; Authority................................... I .~ 1-4 1 5 

ARTICLE 8 COVERAGE DOCUMENTS; UNDERWRITING CONTRIBUTIONS 
.. .. .... .. ................... .. .......... .................. .. ............ .......... ..... ....... ......... ............ +41 5 

Section 8.1 Coverage Documents ............ ................... ........ .. .......... .. .... ...... ...... +415 

Section 8.2 Modification of Coverage Documents and Conflicts ..... .. ............. +41 5 

Section 8.3 Coverage Questions; Appeals and Other Disputes .............. ...... 141-5 16 

Section 8.4 Acceptance and Withdrawal of Coverages ...................... .... .... ...... ~I (l 

Section 8.5 Contributions ........ ... ... ..... .... .... ... .. ............... ..... .......... .. ......... ..... I "-lh I 7 

Section 8.6 Underwriting ............................................ ................... ...... ..... ... .. ... t.e 17 

Section 8. 7 General and Separate Funds............................................ ..... ..... .... . l-{.1 7 

Section 8.8 Commingling ofProgram Funds Prohibited ....... ... ............... .. ....... +417 

Section 8.9 Member Privilege ..... ........ ... ........... ................................................ I (OJ 17 

ARTICLE 9 MPR MISSOURI ASSETS .. ............................................... ..... .. .. ......... ifl·l ~ 1.· 

Section 9.1 MPR Missouri Assets ... .. . .. ..... ... ............. .... .... .. . .. .... .. .. . .. ... .. .. . .. . I ' I 7 l ' 

Section 9.2 Excess or Surplus Distributions ...................................... .. ........... .. +7-18 

Section 9.3 Special Assessments ............................ ...... ................. .. ....... ....... ... -1718 

ARTICLE 10 STANDARD OF CARE; BOND; INDEMNIFICATION................. ... -1 ' L2 
Section 10.1 

Section 10.2 

Section 10.3 

Standard of Care ..................................... ............ .... ............. ... .. . 1 1..1 I ~ 

Bond .................. ...... ..... ... ... .... ........ .... ...... ...... ..... .... ....... .. .. .. .......... +& 19 

Inde:tnnification ...... ... .......... ................ .. ......... ...... ........ ....... .... .. ..... -~ l Sl 

ARTICLE 11 DISSOLUTION AND DISTRIBUTION ................ .... ............... ............... +~ 19 

Section 11.1 

Section 11.2 

Dissolution .................................. ................ ........ .... ......... ... ........... +?) I t) 

Distribution of Assets ..... ..................................... .... .. .. .. .... .. .. ........ ~ ~ 0 

ARTICLE 12 MISCELLANEOUS .................. ........ ... .. ........ .... ............ ...... .. .. ... .. .... ...... .. +-9::20 

Section 12.1 

Section I 2.2 

Section 12.3 

Section 12.4 

Section 12.5 

Section 12.6 

Section 12.7 

4 X;!-1-;!~ l HW~~ I ~ ~~~9.-~'Ul! ~ Q.'t-5 
IHI*IIII';' JJ. Q(j()Q 

I)(H.' U.Heltl 2 

Intergovernmental Contract ............. ........... ..................... .............. ~.Q20 

Governing Law ............ ..... ................................ .. .............. ... ..... ..... -J.1)20 

Binding Eftect ......................... ................ .. ... .. ........ ... ... .. .. ......... .. .. . -l-42u 

Disputes ..................... ..... .......................... ..... .... ....... .... ... .. ..... .. ..... . -W20 

Severability ..................... ..... .......................................... ......... ....... +4~) 

Amendment ............... .......... .. ............................ ................. .. .. .. ...... ~-LJ:! I 

Repeal of Prior Bylaws ...... ... ............. ........................................ .. .. ~121 

30 



MIDWEST PUBLIC RISK OF MISSOURI 

BYLAWS 

Date of Adoption: -------

Effective Date: July 1, 200016 

----·---WHEREAS, it is in the mutual interest of the parties hereto to join together to 
establish and to operate a cooperative program ofloss control and risk management, and to provide 
risk services and risk coverages and other programs which are designed to meet the unique needs 
of governmental entities; and 

---WHEREAS, RSMo. Section 537.620, as amended, authorizes three or more 
Missouri political subdivisions to fonn a not for profit business entity to provide liability and all 
other risk coverages for its members; and 

---WHEREAS, RSMo. Section 537.620 further authorizes qualifying governmental 
entities in Missouri and any other state to join such entity; and 

- -- WHEREAS, alJ of the governmental entities which are party to these Bylaws 
desire to become members of Midwest Public Risk of Missouri ("MPR Missouri") and intend that 
these Bylaws shall constitute a contract among them; 

----NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual advantages to be derived 
herefrom and by the execution of these Bylaws as a contract, all of the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

ARTICLE 1 
DEFINITIONS 

Unless the context requires otherwise, the following tenns shall have the following 
meanings: 

"Act" shall mean RSMo. Chapter 355, the Missouri Nonprofit Corporation Act. 

"Contribution(s)" shall mean any payment required by MPR Missouri to be paid for the 
receipt by a Member of any MPR Missouri Program or Service, or to satisfy any other Member 
obligations under these Bylaws. 

"Coverage Document(s)'' shall mean the written documents approved by MPR Missouri 
and which are either issued by MPR Missouri or purchased through commercia] insurance 
companies, which set forth the terms and conditions of any Program. 

~24..;19 J l ·h92.il II 
JamJtl~2d009 

l*"un~enl-J 

1l!.J9,8.22~:.Q§Q2,~ 

1 

31 



''ltttulocal Agreement', s/w/1 mea11 au agreement hetweeu MPR Missouri ami one or 
more t1{(1) a State, (2) aiwtlter a.\'.\'Ocitt t i m t or entill' tlwt operates (IS 11 self-insured associatiott 
o[govel'llmemul elltitie .... ·, Ol' (3) RII V gf'vel'llmeutal •nlitv autlwri;.etl br tile .\'ltltllte.'\ o r applicable 
laws oftlle state;, wltich it is located. An lntedocal Agreement m u.t;l be e11teretl (or pw ·poses o( 
(/) el·tublislrillg ormoi11taini11g MPR Missouri 's program o(lon· colltrol ami risk llltllttlgement,· 
or (2) prm,idi-ug l"isk services, rt'sk. covemge.\' (iuclmling emplovee beuefits a~id propertvlliabilitvJ 
or other .\·e,·vice.o; to MPR Mi.\·~·ouri Member,\~ 

"Member(s)" shall mean any governmental entity which is authorized by the statutes or 
other applicable law of the State of Missouri to enter into contracts or other arrangements for the 
purpose of pooling resources for liability and other risk coverages and related services and which 
qualifies as a political subdivision, public governmental body, or quasi-public governmental body 
as specified in RSMo. Section 537.620. The constituent individual participants in any Member 
entity whose purpose or function is to administer or sponsor such participants as a collective body 
sha11 not be deemed to be Members ofMPR Missouri, and only such administering or sponsoring 
Member entity shall be entitled to single Member status upon such tenns and conditions as the 
Board of Directors shall detennine. 

"Member Representative(s)" shall mean the individual , who shall be either an elected 
official or a full-time employee of a Member, who has been duly appointed by a Member to 
represent the Member's interest in MPR Missouri and to carry out the obligations of a Member 
Representative under these Bylaws . 

.. 
"Pollcy(ies) or Procedore(s)" shall mean any rules or guidelines which may be 

promulgated from time to time by the MPR Missouri Board of Directors or President/CEO which 
are not Coverage Documents and which shall be necessary to carry out the purposes of MPR 
Missouri. 

"Program(s)" shall mean any coverages which are provided through MPR Missouri to its 
Members from time to time including, but not limited to, property and liability, workers' 
compensation, and employee benefits. 

"Resolution(s)" shall mean any ordinance, resolution or other edict or means by which the 
governing body of a Member takes official action on behalf of, or takes official action which is 
intended to be binding upon, the Member. 

"Service(s)" shall mean those services which are provided through MPR Missouri to its 
Members from time to time which are not Programs and which include, but shall not be limited to, 
loss contro1, risk management, administration, claims adjusting, 1egal defense, and education. 

4~2,1 ~~ll-j,'J.2<1.11 

kHllHlf7 l:L 'tUiif 

l·l<.>>'~lnM11'2 

1.!!39-§9,6.~::(!~ 

2 

32 



ARTICLE2 
NAME; PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Section 2.1 Name; Principal Office 

The not for profit business entity that has heretofore been organized and operated as 
MARCIT shall hereafter be named Midwest Public Risk of Missouri ("MPR Missouri"). 

The Board of Directors sha11 establish, at a location within the State of Missouri, MPR 
Missouri's principal office. 

ARTICLE3 
INTENT; NOT BUSINESS OF INSURANCE 

Section 3.1 Intent 

It is the intent of the Members that MPR Missouri shaH provide comprehensive and 
cooperative Programs and Services to its Members and that the Members shall pay for the costs 
and other obJigations of MPR Missouri through Contributions and the utilization of deductibles, 
retentions, purchase of reinsurance, excess insurance, insurance, or other provisions for the 
payment of Member losses and expenses. 

Section 3.2 Not Business Of Insurance 

The provision of Programs and Services by MPR Missouri to its Members is not, and shall 
not be deemed to constitute, the transaction of an insurance business, and MPR Missouri is not, 
and shall not be deemed to be, an insurance company or insurer under the laws of any state. 

Section 3.3 Not-for-Profit Organization 

---MPR Missouri shall be organized and operated as a not-for-profit corporation 
under Missouri law. No part ofMPR Missouri's assets or net income shall inure to the benefit of 
any individual including any director, officer, employee, or Member, except as may be authorized 
in these Bylaws and allowed by Jaw; provided, however, that MPR Missouri shaH be authorized to 
pay al1 expenses incurred in furtherance of the purposes set forth in these Bylaws, including 
reimbursement to directors, officers, employees, Members or others acting on behalf of MPR 
Missouri. 

ARTICLE4 
MPR MISSOURI POWERS 

Sedion 4.1 MPR Missouri Powers 

MPR Missouri shall have the following powers to carry out the purposes set forth in these 
Bylaws: 

41'24-&Ul 1-1-IW.a<l l-l 
Jaflttafy-»,~19 
('lt\•IUH'!t!!\h! 

<I.U2;.8~~li41 '0!.1.~ 

3 

33 



(a) to establish and implement edl!cational, technical assistance and other activities 
relating to risk management and loss control; 

(b) to establish reasonable and necessary loss control policies, procedures and 
programs to be followed by Members; 

(c) to establish underwriting cmd claims adjusting standards and procedures; such 
services may be perfonned by MPR Missouri staff or MPR Missouri may contract with others for 
such services, including legal defense; 

{d} to retain staff, agents and independent contractors and to provide for an employee 
benefits program for MPR Missouri employees; 

(e) to acquire, lease, hold or dispose of real or personal property; 

(f) to invest funds as authorized by law; 

(g) to collect and administer funds as needed and, within prudent reserving and 
actuarial standards, to set aside sufficient casb reserves for the payment of claims and expenses; 

(h) to establish rules for the calculation and payment of Contributions by Members or 
Member employees, in luding penalties for late payments· 

(i) to assume, cede and sell risk; 

(j) to sue and be sued; 

(k) to enter into contracts, including, but not limited to contracts with state pools 
located in otber states which assist MPR Missouri in carrying out its powers hereunder; 

(I) to establish rules for the reimbursement of members of the Board of Directors, 
officers, committee members and others for reasonable and necessary expenses while tending to 
official business on behalf of MPR Missouri; 

(m) to determine deductible and retention levels • _i.JOd~ ~ a and the 
amount of risk to be retained by MPR Missouri or Members and the amount of risk to be 
transferred to others; 

(n) to borrow money or issue bonds or other financial obligations to fund MPR 
Missouri Programs and Services; 

(o) to purchase or provide fidelity bond coverage or other risk coverage for officers, 
Directors and employees of MPR Missouri; 

(p) to be subrogated to the rights ofits Members and to seek recovery in the name of its 
Members from any person or entity responsible for a claim or loss; 

(q) to declare and pay dividends and: refunds as allowed by law; 

-tS24-~<~ I I -N~-2'1 I I 
.kHlll<lf!" -i2.1<)lN 

4 

34 



(r) to determine Coverage Docwm.ents and Policies and Procedures which are 
necessary, desirable or expedient to pm,.,md'e tlle Servires and Programs authorized by these 
Bylaws; 

(s) to perform such other acuvitiles which are necessary, expedient, implied or 
desirable to carry out the purposes ofMPR. Miss01!lri; and 

(t) to perform any such other ad s: whlelit are allowed by law to be performed under the 
Act. 

ARTICLES 
MEMBERS 

Section 5.1 Member Eligibility and Admis.s.mn 

- --Subject to the payment of appropriate Contributions and under such terms and 
conditions as the Board of Directors may establish, new Members may be admitted with the 
approval of the majority of the total membership of the Board of Directors. Only those 
governmental entities which meet the Membe1 deti.nition in these Bylaws- mH E• ~-~-~~FI J 
lm~ · l11 1 · e do v LL\.e"""' _lu_l ·' I 

er 1b ~ ·s • v d , '[ · tir ) lt aul t these Bylaws (or have otherwise 
assured MPR Missouri of their obligation to comply with these Bylaws) may be accepted for 
membership. A governmental entity located m my state of the United States other than the State 
of Missouri that is eligible to become a member of a governmental pool that is located in the 
governmental entity's own state and that is party to a Risk Sharing Agreement with MPR Missouri 
shall not be eligible to become a Member of MPR Missouri. The Board of Directors of MPR 
Missouri may delegate authority to review and accept or reject applications for membership by 
written agreement to such persons or entity and in such manner as it may determine to be 
consistent with the best interests ofMPR Missouri .. 

Section 5.2 Member Rights 

--- The rights of Members, wbicb shalf be exercised by the Member Representative of 
each Member, shaU be as follows: 

(a) to vote on all matters whiCh slOOlf be presented to Members for a vote at any 
Member meeting; 

(b) to elect, in accordance with the procedures described in these Bylaws, eligible 
candidates to the Board of Directors; 

(c) to apply for and receive and pamcipate in Programs and Services for which the 
Member is qualified upon such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors shall detennine; and 

(d) to exercise all other rights and privileges: as are described in these Bylaws and as are 
allowed under the Act. 

4'1>14-4\1-1-f-&929 +~ 
Jan~~aty _ -20iW 
Gtt<Hllflt!IH-2 
4 ' ;.\9·8928:;Will9. ~ 

5 

35 



Section 5.3 Member Obligations 

The obligations of Members shaH be as foUows: 

(a) to continuously maintain participation in no less than one MPR Missouri Program 
tt·l ra:ei- 1 l • ,,. 1111 - I P , I i~o;H IFi , ' t ' I 't!; 

(b) to designate in writing. by the chief administrative officer of the Member, a 
Member Representative. MPR Missouri shaH not be required to contact any other individual 
except the Member Represemati ve for any action or uotification which may be required by these 
Bylaws or MPR Missouri rules. AJI notices to or agreements with the Member Representative shall 
be binding upon the Member. A Member may change the Member Represen1ative by giving 
written notice to MPR Missouri; 

(c) to promptly make aH Contributions and other payments which are due to MPR 
Missouri at such times and in such amounts as shall be required by MPR Missouri; 

(d) with reasonable notice and during normal work hours, to pennit MPR Missouri and 
its agents, officers and employees access to all facilities and records of the Member, including but 
not limited to financial records, as they I elate to the operations of MPR Missouri· 

(e) to report immediately to MPR Missouri, as required by relevant Program Coverage 
Documents and Policies and Procedures, all occurrences which could reasonably be expected to 
result in a claim against the Member, its agents, officers or employees or for losses to Member 
property, within the scope of the Programs provided by MPR Missouri; 

(f) to cooperate fully with MPR Missouri cJaims adjustors, agents, employees and 
attorneys in the investigation and settlement of any claim or lawsuit within the scope of Programs 
or Services provided by MPR Missouri, and to acknowledge that MPR Missouri has the final 
authority to select legal defense counsel for any lawsuit brought under the Programs provided by 
MPR Missouri to the Member; 

(g) to implement, as finances and circumstances permit, MPR Missouri recommended 
risk management and loss control policies and procedures, and also to permit Member officials and 
employees to participate in MPR Missouri sponsored conferences and seminars; 

(h) to report to MPR Missouri, as required by MPR Missouri Program Coverage 
Documents or Policies and Procedures, the addition of new services, programs or facilities, the 
reduction or expansion of existing operations and facilities, or other facts that could reasonably be 
expected to affect the Member's loss experiences or create potential risks; 

(i) to provide MPR Missouri as promptly as possible with all requested information 
needed for determining Member loss exposures and Contributions; 

(j) to take an active role in the business of MPR Missouri, including assignment of 
personnel to serve on various MPR Missouri committees; and 

41'24-2011-<>92(),11 
)lltlitn~y n ·100~ 

fH>tH 11\ll'll~ -2 

6 

36 



(k) to comply with all tenns and conditions of these Bylaws, Coverage Documents and 
Policies and Procedures. 

---Except as expressly set forth to the contrary in these Bylaws or MPR Missouri's 
Articles of Incorporation, the rights and obligations of Members shall be identical in all respects. 

Section S.4 Limitations on Member Liability 

----Except as specifically required by MPR Missouri's Articles of Incorporation, 
Bylaws, or by law, no Member shaJI be responsible for any claim in tort or contract made against 
any other Member solely on account of a Member's participation in MPR Missouri. By executing 
these Bylaws, the Members have not created between or among themselves any relationship or 
partnership, suretyship, indemnification or responsibility for debts or claims against any other 
Member. These Bylaws shall not relieve any Member of any obligation or responsibility imposed 
upon it by law, except to the extent that actual and timely perfonnance by MPR Missouri satisfies 
such obligation or responsibility in whole or in part. 

Section S.S Annual Member Meeting 

---There shaJI be one annual membership meeting of MPR Missouri .~;4:Jt~.- n 
1 ~~ -A ,;s Wean s~la , · ~ · \le · ~ · each year at M ll.J Mi~~ttft · ,· r:i-A~k! ~ tl • •h 
ttN\efi} time and place as·-AU~W be designated by the Board of Directors. Notice of such meeting 
shall be sent by first class mail to Member Representatives at least ten (10) days in advance of the 
meeting . . Failure of any Member Representative to receive such notice shall not nullify any action 
taken at an annual membership meeting. Notice of such meeting may aJso be given by electronic 
means. 

---The President/CEO shall prepare the agenda for the annual membership meeting 
and shall include on such agenda any item requested by five (5) or more Member Representatives 
at least twenty (20) days prior to the meeting. Any subject relating to MPR Missouri may be 
discussed at the annual membership meeting. 

---At the annual meeting, the President/CEO and chief financial officer of MPR 
Missouri shall report to the Members on the activities and financial condition of MPR Missouri. 

Section S.6 Special Membership Meeting 

---A special Membership meeting may be called by a majority of the total 
membership of the Board of Directors or upon the petition of one-third (1/3) of the Members 
acting through their Member Representatives. A special membership meeting must be held within 
sixty (60) calendar days after receipt of a valid petition; provided, however, that if the annual 
membership meeting is scheduled to occur within sixty (60) days after receipt of the request for the 
special membership meeting, then no separate special membership meeting shall be held. If a 
valid petition is received within sixty (60) calendar days prior to the annual membership meeting, 
the topic or topics contained in the petition shall be placed on the agenda for that meeting. 

4S24.;!Q.I-I-6Q.2Q.,j I 
JllllUitl')' .;!-}_, .;?,flOQ 

{)(l;.>iJJl'IIJ0!-2 

Q,?-6~~ 

7 

37 



- -- - -Notice of a special membership meeting shall be mailed, by first class mail, to each 
Member Representative at least ten (10) days in advance of the meeting date. Failure of any 
Member Representative to receive such notice shall not nullify any action taken at a special 
membership meeting. 

Only those matters which are within the purpose or purposes described in the 
meeting notice may be considered at a special membership meeting. The Board of Directors shall 
establish the time and place for all special membership meetings. 

Section S. 7 Quorum; Voting Rights 

- - A quorum of (If lea.w ~ ¥t'fl II ) v n [l Member 
Representatives shall be required to conduct business at a special or annual membership meeting. 
No absentee or proxy voting shall be allowed at any membership meeting. Each Member shall be 
entitled to one vote that must be cast by the Member Representative·#! -~t~l·.--+~r -h~F ,Je-si-~t:>e. 

Minutes o{t!Je 1eeting shan record /tow mtllll' ltwmber.\· o(' MPR MO exi. ·t 111 the tiine o[the 
meeting mul ltowmtmv (ill whole number.-.) coustituted the required tweutv percent. 

The Chair ofthe Board of Directors shall preside at all membership meetings and, if 
the Chair is attending the meeting in the capacity of Member Representative, shall be entitled to 
vote on all matters coming before the meeting. 

Section 5.8 Withdrawal 

A Member may withdraw from membershjp in MPR Missouri as of the end of 
MPR Missouri's fiscal year provided that such Member has given MPR Missouri at least ninety 
(90) days' prior written notice of its intention to withdraw and provided further that such Member 
ceases participation in all MPR Missouri Programs and Services as of the date of withdrawal. 
Except for withdrawing Members which have retained rights pursuant to a written agreement with 
the Board of Directors at the time of withdrawal, a withdrawing Member shall forfeit all rights to 
any refunds, dividends, or claims upon MPR Missouri's assets upon dissolution of MPR Missouri 
which may be declared or determined subsequent to the date of the Member's withdrawal. 

----- ·A notice of Member withdrawal shall be accompanied by a Resolution adopted by 
the governing body of the Member which authorizes the withdrawal of the Member from MPR 
Missouri. Such notice shall be final and binding. No notice of Member withdrawal shall be 
effective unless it is accompanied by such governing body Resolution. 

-- - - - -A withdrawing Member shall continue to be responsible for all obligations after the 
date of wit..ltdrawal that relate to the tenn of membership including, but not limited to, obligations 
for special assessments. The withdrawing Member shall be subject to all MPR Missouri Policies 
and Procedures pertaining to any obligation, claim or lawsuit covered by MPR Missouri. 

--- - Any Member who withdraws from MPR Missouri without complying with the 
foregoing obligations shall be obligated to pay to MPR Missouri liquidated damages equal to 25% 
of the Member's annua1 Contributions paid by such Member in its final full year of participation in 
MPR Missouri. Member agrees to pay such liquidated damages within twenty (20) calendar days 

· 1)(~ · 1 'N i ~-<,<;?..<HI 
JHIHtilf"-;)-:)-,.£(~J<,i 

8 

38 



following receipt of the computation of the amount due. MPR Missouri and Member agree that 
the failure of Member to withdraw from MPR Missouri in accordance with the foregoing 
procedures shaiJ cause damage to MPR Missouri in amounts which it is not possible calculate at 
this time and that these liquidated damages are a good faith estimate ofthe damages as to which the 
Member shall be obligated to MPR Missouri. 

Section 5.9 Termination 

(a) Termination 

----A Member may be terminated from membership in MPR Missouri for cause upon a 
majority vote of the total membership of the Board of Directors. The effective date of such 
tennination shall be as determined by the Board of Directors, except that such termination shall 
take effect no later than ninety (90) days following the Board's decision to tenninate. For 
purposes of this Section, cause shall be deemed to include the following: 

( l) failure to maintain at least one Program with MPR Missouri-tt · ·>nh'tl 1 -t~.r 
t- ~\ · e • pi ·J t:tll'l~ et'-'1·i· · •: 'FRHhNJ.lli{...Mi :;sc:n tFi ; 

(2) failure to make any Contribution due to MPR Missouri in accordance with 
the directives of the MPR Missouri Board of Directors; 

(3) failure to undertake or to continue risk management or loss control 
measures recommended by MPR Missouri; 

(4) failure to allow MPR Missouri and its agents reasonable access to all 
facilities and records of the Member which are necessary for the proper administration of 
MPR Missouri; 

(5) failure to cooperate fully with MPR Missouri officers, employees, 
attorneys, claims adjusters or other agents; 

(6) failure to file required reports with MPR Missouri or the filing of a false 
claim or report or any conduct which impairs the abiJity of MPR Missouri to carry out its 
purposes; 

(7) adverse loss experience with respect to the property and liability Program or 
the workers' compensation Program, as determined by the Board of Directors; 

(8) breach of any of Member's obligations under these Bylaws, MPR Missouri 
Coverage Documents, or MPR Missouri Policies and Procedures; 

(9) failure of a Member, the elected governing body of the Member, or of other 
personnel of the Member to exercise the Member's powers or fulfill the Member's duties 
in accordance with the constitution or statutes of the state which has enabled the creation of 
the Member and which has prescribed the Member's classification as a governmental 
entity; Elf 

4H?<I -?.QI•f -{>tn9,1l 
l!tF+Uii'7' P-,·?.IMIII 
J)jlt!lHHt.'M-2 

~~HW~II;.QJW\1.~ 

9 

39 



(W) a Member becomes ineligible for MPR Missouri Membership pursuant to§ 
5.1 of these Bylaws; provided that such Member may not be terminated during the Program 
yerur ifs1lldJ Member's ineligibility is established after the first day of a Program year~ 

{b) Notification; Hearing, Obligations 

A Member shall be terminated immediately and without further notice upon the 
fai lure of a Member to maintain at least one Program or receive any Servtces from MPR Missouri. 
A Memtb.e~r s:haU be terminated with not less than thirty (30) days written notice upon the 
determimati:on by the Board of Directors that such Member has adverse loss experience. In all 
other ea>ses, a Member may be tenninated only after wri tten notice sent by certified or first class 
mail firom tile President/CEO of MPR Missouri stating the reasons for termination. Such notice 
shall prcll,\!idle the Member thirty (30) calendar days to cure the grounds for termination. The 
Membetr may reqaest a hearing before the Board of Directors prior to the final termination of the 
Memloel' s membeJsmip in MPR Missouri. The President/CEO of MPR Missouri shall present the 
case for temnat.ion to the Board of Directors, and the Member shall have reasonable opportunity 
to present Its case to the Board of Directors. 

---- The decision by a majority of the total members of the Board of Directors to 
terminate a Member after notice and hearing or after the failure of the Member to cure the grounds 
given fm· temamation shall be final and shall not be subject to appeal in any forum. The 
termination shaJ!Jl take effect thirty (30) calendar days after the decision to terminate is approved by 
the Boarnll of Directors. 

·-A terminated Member shall forfeit all rights to any MPR Missouri refunds, 
dividends,. or distribution of assets upon dissolution after the effective date of tennination. Any 
terminated Member shall continue to be bound to those same continuing obligations as to which a 
withdrawing Member is obligated in accordance with Section 5.8 ofthese Bylaws. 

Sectiou5.10 Application of Sections 355.231 to 355.306 of the Act 

The provisions of Sections 355.231 to 355.306 of the Act shall apply to MPR Missouri 
except to the extent the provisions of such Sections are inconsistent with the Articles of 
Incorporation of MPR Missouri or these Bylaws, provideii, however, that no Section allowing 
proxy voting shall apply to MPR Missouri. 

ARTICLE6 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Sectio11116.l Powers; Election; Vacancies 

--· ---~ The Board of Directors shaiJ consist of eleven (11) members. The Board of 
Directms: shaJJL a:d0pt rutes for the election of Directors by the Member Representatives and for 

4~2<1 .'911-i>Y24 j I 

.lanum,.·n.~!J()<,i 

10 

40 



appointment to fill Director vacancies by the Board of Directors, provided that the following 
conditions are fulfilled: 

(a) at !east two members of the Board of Directors shall be from the · ·Hit ~ j · largest 
Missouri Members as measmed by total contributions paid in MPR Missouri's most recent fiscal 
year; 

(b) each Member Representative shall be entitled to one vote for each Director position 
to be filled; 

(c) Directors shaM serve three year, staggered tenns provided that no Director may 
serve more than two consecutive three· year terms or a total of six consecutive years. Board service 
by individuals appointed to flU the remainder of an unexpired term shall not be considered for 
purposes of these limitations; 

(d) Directors shalf assume office at the end of the annual membership meeting 
fo1Iowing election; 

(e) by majority vote of the total number of serving Directors, the Board of Directors 
shall appoint quaHfied indlvidua]s to fi]l vacancies on the Board of Directors for the remainder of 
any unexpired term; 

(t) 
vote of~~~~~~~ 
meeting,~~~~~~~~'l-Y.J 

(g) the Board of Directors shall adopt rules for the nomination of qua1ified candidates 
to run for election to the Board ofDirectors. 

Section 6.2 Director Qualifications 

--.AI1 Directors shaJI be full time employees of a Member. Any Director who fails to 
meet this requirement or whose Member entity withdraws or whose membership in MPR Missouri 
is tenninated as provided in these Bylaws shall immediately forfeit the Director's position. All 
directors shall meet the requirements of the Act. 

Section 6.3 Director C()mpensation and Expenses 

--- Directors shanl serve whhout compensation. Directors' reasonable and necessary 
expenses related to service on the Board of Directors shall be paid or reimbursed by MPR 
Missouri. 

Section 6.4 Board Officers 

•1112 111.1-J .• (~2<J H 
)SflliiU)i -2~.;!{)()ll 

Doe!itlle!II·J 

ill?·!I928.JJ.I!i)9~ 

II 

41 



The Chair shall preside at all Board of Directors meetings and shall be entitled to 
vote on all matters brought before the meeting. The Chair shall also, with the approval of the 
Board, appoint all committee members. The Board may also authorize the Chair to represent the 
interests ofMPR Missouri before such organizations as the Board shall designate. The Vice Chair 
shaH act in the Chair's absence. 

· The Secretary shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, the official minutes of all 
meetings ofthe Board ofDirectors and of the Members. and shall authenticate all MPR Missouri 
official records. 

The Treasurer shall prepare or cause to be prepared an accurate accounting of all 
MPR Missouri assets and liabilities and all receipts and disbursements. The Treasurer shall 
perform the duties generally incident to the office of Treasurer. 

In the case of a vacancy in any office, the Board of Directors shall, at the Board of 
Directors' next regular meeting, appoint a qualified Director to fill the unexpired tenn. No 
individual may serve more than three consecutive one year terms in the same office position. 

Section 6.5 Board Powers 

- Except as otherwise required by law, MPR Missouri's Articles oflncorporation, or 
these Bylaws, all corporate powers of MPR Missouri shall be exercised by or under the authority 
of, and the affairs of MPR Missouri shall be managed under the direction of, the Board of 
Directors. The Board of Directors shall have the authority and power to take all steps and actions 
necessary, desirable or expedient to fulfill the obligations and objectives contained in these 
Bylaws. The enumeration of any specific duty or power is not to be construed as a limitation upon 
the right to exercise any other powers or duties. 

Subject to any applicable laws, and upon such terms as the Board of Directors shall 
establish in accordance with Section 9.2 of these Bylaws, the Board of Directors may, but shall not 
be required to, declare refunds or dividends to Members~~~ 

r . 

~~:·1 ~lJ\ 1-i~'fll.) ll 

lrtlltlit~ .2~-. lfN II} 

12 

42 



cclar r~: mi.'...QI ·vi ems _ e 1e ., _ Except for withdrawing Members which have retained 
rights pursuant to a written agreement with the Board of Directors at the time ofwithdrawal, any 
Member which withdraws prior to the declaration of any refund or dividend from the Program as 
to which the refund or dividend is based shall surrender all rights to such refund or dividend. Any 
dividend or refund allocable to a Member shall first be used to offset and reduce the amounts, if 
any, which may be due and unpaid to MPR Missouri from such Member. 

---:~w -l-kHtl't4--i~f-f)iH't' i~l':-o .;h;11! ~'it'(H IIt'-ii-· Rtsk -.\-har~H g- -Agft't!tnt~·nt- ·Wii~- Mtth\'cSt 

I t*lH ltt\!jrt!r.-1-11 . . • 1~ \'! l'lrpnrtHi Hll- · M -K-tlil!ifl!< ") , Cor t ~l ,'htt ·in o1 A5k · f 
I ~llh and derHflh< '~n gt!-~) IW 1 f .,, Mtw.:l HfHtnfl...i\4PR KRns . . nd .'haH At11iH ~k)l.:..tl~ 

tthh~~ttlion~ under tlw l~· tsk 5.;hunng •\~!i't'~m~~nL The·-~ HudJbG B_q~HJLQf Qi.t;~ctN~ shall approve 
and execute a management and administration agreement with Midwest Public Risk ("MPR") for 
implementation of the Risk Sharing Agreement. 

The Board f Pi «Jl may enter into . iffitlar interlocal agreements w~~h-M-PR f..;;;.tHS!I!-1 for 
other types of coverage risks, and may enter into -~im tlar interlocal agreements with other 
appropriate entities, subject to applicable law, at the discretion of the Board of Directors. 

--- - -The Board of Directors shall select a qualified public accounting finn to audit, on 
an annual basis, MPR Missouri's financial records in confonnance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, relevant laws and these Bylaws. A copy of the audit shall be distributed as 
required by law. 

·The Board of Directors shall adopt an annual budget in a fotm and manner 
determined by the Board of Directors. 

--- -~The Board of Directors shall adopt rules governing the conduct of Directors and 
Director meetings, including, but not limited to, an attendance policy. Directors may only be 
removed by the majority vote of a quorum of a meeting of the Members. 

Section 6.6 Committees 

year tenns. 

-----The Board of Directors may create advisory and technical committees as deemed 
necessary or expedient. The Board of Directors shall detennine committee duties, number of 
members, and membership qualifications and tcmts. ~H-er+H--s-hiil·~wed ~ years nnr :-;lwlt-im~ 
i»tl~vi,~uH~·st:'n·eH-lnfe lhHn -~1-:'i ·tM ·t.'Ot-t!'i~l:'u~~.vt---ye:at'S:tiH·f.h~-same·ftH»IHiH~e. The Chair shall, with 
the approval of the Board of Directors, appoint all committee members and committee chairs~ 
H~ Htit>-H-h:.letlml-tUe 'leAn ~i$;4~le-fltl l" ifl-l+ltettHil-m~l~ Hk t'tttlHlimJ~r· t 14h~*l t-refkerm, 

13 

43 



Section 6. 7 MPR Missouri Policies. aod Proeedures 

The Board of Directors shall adopt Policies and Procedures, not in conflict with 
these Bylaws, that arc necessary or expedient or desirable for the operation and functioning of 
MPR Missouri. All Members, Directors~ officers, employees and other service providers shall be 
subject to and adhere to such Policies and Procedures. 

Section 6.8 Meetings 

The Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately following 
the wmual Member meeting for the purpose of electing MPR Missouri officers and transacting 
such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting. In addition to such Annual 
Meeting, the Board of Directors shall hold. regular meetings on the first Wednesday of February. 
April, June and December of each year at lO:OO a. m. or at such other time and place as may be 
designated by the Board of Directors. Speeial Beard of Directors' meetings may be called by the 
Chair or by 1/3 ofthe Directors. Any topic maybe discussed at a regular meeting~ only topics on 
the agenda may be discussed at a special meeting. Directors and Member Representatives shall 
receive at least five (5) days' written notlce of aU Board of Directors meetings, which notice may 
be electronic. 

All Board of Directors meetings, except those pennitted by law to be closed, shall 
be open to the public, and all votes shall be publ:ic except as otherwise permitted or required by law 
or these Bylaws. Unless notice is provided to the contrary, all meetings of the Board of Directors 
shall be held at MPR Missouri's principal office. 

-- Except as required by law or these Bylaws, a majority vote of the Directors present 
at a meeting at which a quorum is present slitaU be required to approve all motions or other actions 
ofthe Board. 

4/Q4-~lrl H>>l2'J I I 
JiUHIHry 12. 20I)lj 

Duolltllenl? 

!JIIJHm.:OliW.!i 

14 

44 



ARTICLE 7 
PRESIDENT/CEO 

Seetion 7.1 President/CEO; Appointment; Authority 

---There is hereby continued the position of President/Chief Executive Officer 
(''President/CEO")- who shall be appointed and may be removed by a majority of the total 
membership of the Board of Directors. The President/CEO shall be an officer ofMPR Missouri. 

---The President/CEO shall be responsible to the Board of Directors for the proper 
administration and conduct of all Programs and Services offered by MPR Missouri. All agents, 
employees and independent contractors shall report to the Board of Directors through the 
President/CEO and shaH be supervised by the President/CEO. 

----Subject to any limitations adopted by the Board of Directors, the President/CEO is 
authorized to settle all claims or cases involving the Programs provided by MPR Missouri. 

--·--The President/CEO shall prepare and submit to the Board of Directors, for 
consideration prior to the start of each fiscal year, a recommended budget for the forthcoming year. 
The President/CEO shall attest to all official records, sign contracts, select, appoint and supervise 
aU employees, implement the adopted annual budget, and do all other things customary to this 
position. 

---The President/CEO shall be a member of all standing and special committees and 
shall be entitled to attend all Board of Directors and committee meetings with a right to speak but 
not to vote on issues. The President/CEO may be excused fi-om Board or committee meetings 
pertaining to the President/CEO's employment or job performance. 

ARTICLES 
COVERAGE DOCUMENTS; UNDERWRITING CONTRIBUTIONS 

Section 8.1 Coverage Documents 

---MPR Missouri Programs shall be described in separate Coverage Documents. 
MPR Missouri may add, delete, or modify the Coverage Documents for such Programs as the 
Board of Directors may detennine. All MPR Missouri Programs shaU be considered excess only 
and not primary or contributory when the Member has a valid and collectable insurance policy or 
other similar protection against a loss covered by MPR Missouri. 

Section 8.2 Modification of Coverage Documents and Confticts 

----Coverage Documents may be modified by the President/CEO to meet specific 
Member or MPR Missouri needs and shall be provided to the Member. Such Coverage 
Documents shall be subject to all of the tenns and conditions of these Bylaws and MPR Missouri 
Policies and Procedures. In case of any conflict between the Coverage Documents and these 
Bylaws, these Bylaws shall be controUing. 

4~24-2\l-~ H•~•;q.~ 

1~11Ui117'-l-2, '*1'){.) L) 

llt..;;um••m-2 
ill 92:W 09..5 

15 

45 



Section 8.3 Coverage Questions; Appeals and Other Disputes 

-- -·- ·-The President/CEO shall decide all questions of coverage in specific cases. A 
Member may appeal the President/CEO's decision to the Board of Directors. Notification of such 
appeal must be taken no later than sixty (60) calendar days after the date of the President/CEO's 
decision. The Member shall have the opportunity to appear and present evidence to the Board of 
Directors. The Board of Directors' decision. by a majority of the total membership of the Board of 
Directors, shall be final and not subject to appeal in any forum. 

----- The Board of Directors shall decide all other disputes between MPR Missouri and 
any Member involving these Bylaws, Coverage Documents or Policies and Procedures. The 
Board of Directors' decision, by a majority of the total membership of the Board ofDirectors, shall 
be final and not subject to appeal in any forum. 

Section 8.4 Acceptance and Withdrawal of Coverages 

--- No Member shall receive any Program or Services unless the Member' s request for 
such Program or Services is accompanied by ' t r ft · 1 · ~ C\n 1 l liiJ,..ca..;.~w.:.o~ 
vote..m.a Resolution adopted by its governing body expressing the governing body's intention to 
secure the Program or Service from MPR Missouri. 

M-embers belouging to tile Worker ' Compe11satio11 program must participate itt the 
sa/'ef!I Ser viL·es offered by MPR as re([lliretl b1• lfle Mil·souri Divi~·ion of Workers' Compen.mliou. 

- Any Member may withdraw from, and cease participation in, any MPR Missouri 
Program or Service at the end of any contract year by giving at least ninety (90) days' notice, in 
writing, of its intention to withdraw. In the case of any such withdrawal from a Program, except 
for withdrawing Members which have retained rights pursuant to a written agreement with the 
Board of Directors at the time of withdrawal, the withdrawing Member shall forfeit all rights to 
any refunds, dividends or payments in dissolution which may be declared subsequent to the date of 
withdrawal with respect to the Member's past participation in the Program. A Member's request 
for withdrawal shall specifically state which Program or Service the Member desires to withdraw 
from and must be accompanied by a Resolution adopted by its governing body which expresses the 
governing body' s intention to withdraw. Such notice shall be final and binding. Failure to submit 
such a governing body Resolution shall have the effect of voiding the notice of withdrawal as 
though such notice were not given. 

A withdrawing Member from any Program shall continue to be responsible for all 
obligations after the date of withdrawal that relate to the prior coverage under the Program, 
including, but not limited to, the obligation to satisfy any special assessments. The withdrawing 
Member shall also be subject to all MPR Missouri rules pertaining to any obligation, claim or 
lawsuit covered by MPR Missouri. 

··- ·---- Any Member which withdraws from any Program or Service and fails to provide 
the required ninety (90) days' notice of intention to withdraw shall pay liquidated dan1ages equal 

16 
4~:24· .N l l--li'.J2!.i I I 
Jn1111al )' ~~- 2(»1'i 

46 



to 25% of the Program's annual premium contribution paid by the Member in the prior year, 
except for withdrawing Members which have retained their rights pursuant to a written agreement 
with tl1e Board of Directors at the time of withdrawat The Member agrees to pay such liquidated 
damages within twenty (20) calendar days after receipt of a bJll. MPR Missouri and the Member 
agree that it is not possible to calculate the damage to MPR Missouri which may be caused by the 
breach of this condition and that the foregoing percentage constitutes liquidated damages which 
are a good faith estimate by MPR Missouri and the Member. The Board of Directors, at its 
discretion, may shorten the ninety (90) days' notice period as it deems appropriate, provided that it 
shall have previously given written notice of such change to all of the Meinbers. 

Section 8.5 Contributions 

---MPR Missouri Programs and Services shall be funded by Contributions from its 
Members and Member employees for those ProgTams and Services in which Members desire to 
participate. The Board of Directors shall determine when Contributions are due and may impose 
charges for late payments. Each Member's account shall be reviewed on an annual basis. 

Section 8.6 Underwriting 

---- Contributions for Programs and Services paid by Members and their employees 
shaH be detennined in accordance with underwriting guidelines approved by the Board of 
Directors. Underwriting guidelines may be based upon any factor or combination of factors which 
relate to potential losses and which will produce sufficient income to pay losses and related 
administrative expenses. Underwriting guidelines shaH be reviewed periodical1y to insure that 
they meet the stated objectives. 

Section 8. 7 General and Separate Funds 

---'Contributions from Members shall be paid into a general fund. Monies shall be 
paid out of the general fund to such separate Program funds as the Board of Directors shaH 
determine. Each separate Program shall have its own separate fund. 

Section 8.8 Commingling of Program Funds Prohibited 

---'Contributions paid and any assets attributable thereto by Members for any MPR 
Missouri Program shall not be used or devoted to any pwpose other than to pay losses and 
expenses related to the specific Program, including any Program Fund established pursuant to any 
risk sharing agreement, for which the Contributions were paid. 

Section 8.9 Member Privilege 

- --The Board of Directors shall establish rules which shall govem and determine the 
settlement of claims or lawsuits covered by MPR Missouri Programs, provided that the Member 
may reject recommended settlements. If a Member exercises this privilege to reject a 
recommended settlement, the Member shall thereafter be responsible for all damages, expenses 
and costs, of every kind and description, without limitation, that exceed the rejected settlement and 
accrued loss adjustment expenses through the date of rejection by the Member. 

~~·I.J~H-'•u;!J+.-H 

JanuH~y.;J~; -11}(19 

flii\'Hillffil 2 

!3JH9:t8-oi!.IJ,',!,~ 

17 

47 



ARTICLE9 
MPR MISSOURI ASSETS 

Section 9.1 MPR Missouri Assets 

~---All Contributions, monies. and other assets, including interest or other investment 
earnings thereon paid by Members to MPR Missouri, and any other assets: obtained in any other 
manner by MPR Missouri, shall be the property of MPR Missouri. No Member shall have any 
right or claim to such MPR Missouri assets including, but not limited to, any excess or surplus 
funds held by MPR Missouri, except such that are authorized specifically by MPR Missouri's 
Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or by resolution of the Board of Directors. All assets of 
MPR Missouri, including but not limited to, any excess or surplus funds held by MPR Missouri, 
may be used for MPR Missouri purposes in such manner as the Board o:f Directors deems 
appropriate. 

Section 9.2 Excess or Surplus Distributions 

Provided that all statutory and regulatory requirements are complied with including but 
not limited to prior approval from tbe Missouri Division ofWorkers ' Compensati:on in the event of 
a refund from the Workers' Compensation Program to its Members, the Board of Directors, Ht 1t~ 
o.;t~~ ... ~~ fr~t~Htl may determine to make distributions of excess or surplus funds from any Program 
to such Program s Members- in -"1-\l h the .. iml : hull lat~J:mi n t. 11 

de.le th ru.t11 de cr j e · > ~ d 
~~.Jil,I,!.~~M.~ro~i>'· ..... ul-"l..L em er Tin tb · _Rj k <1 \t ti 
1 1 · · t c r . Such distributions shall be limited to (a) Members which were active 
participants in good standing in such Program throughout the period for which a distribution was 
declared and which remain- active participants in such Program at the time a distribution is paid, 
and (b) any former Members which have retained the right to excess or surplus distributions 
pursuant to a written agreement with the Board of Directors. 

As deJ·cribed ;, "Section 6.5 Board Powers" the Board of Directors, bv writte11 
agreement, mav delegate the authority to declal'e refunds or divitle11d. to members to the MPR 
Executive Committee. 

Section 9.3 Special Assessments 

If, at any time, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, MPR Missouri ' s assets are 
insufficient to meet anticipated obligations for any Program or Service ()ffered b.y MPR Missouri, 
the Board of Directors shall develop a financial plan to restore MPR MissmRi' s financial integrity. 
The Board may direct Members to pay a speciai assessment to eliminate such insufficiency 
provided that the Member was a participant at any time during the MPR Missouri fiscal year in the 
Program or Service which incurred the insufficiency. Each Member shall be assessed its pro rata 
share of the insufficiency based upon its relative percentage of the total Contributions or fees paid 
by all Members for the Program or Service as to which the insufficiency bas arisen. 

41Q4- ~.UI - I -4t'WH I 
JHt-ltiiHV ~·~·. lH()l) 

Dl•l' Uillt'lll 2 

18 

48 



As required by Jaw, workers ' compensation Program insufficiencies shall be the joint and 
several obligation of each Member which participated in the workers' compensation Program 
during the period of the insufficiency. 

A Member shall be and remain liable for any special assessment whether or not the 
Member was a MPR Missouri Member at the time of the levying of the special assessment. 

ARTICLE 10 
STANDARD OF CARE; BOND; INDEMNIFICATION 

Section 10.1 Standard of Care 

----Directors, officers and employees of MPR Missouri shall use ordinary care and 
reasonable diligence in the exercise of their powers and in the performance of their duties on 
behalf of MPR Missouri. Such Directors, officers, and employees shall not be liable for any 
mistake of judgment or other action made, taken or committed by them in good faith nor for any 
action taken or omitted by any agent, employee or independent contractor who was selected with 
reasonable care. No Director shall be liable for any actions taken or not taken by any other 
Director. 

Section 10.2 Bond 

---MPR Missouri may provide for a bond or other security to guarantee the faithful 
performance oftbe obligations of its Directors, officers and employees. 

Section 10.3 Indemnification 

MPR Missouri shall hold harmless and defend and indemnify all present and past 
Directors, officers and employees for actions taken by any such person in good faith within the 
scope of his or her authority or duties for MPR Missouri. This duty shall apply to any direct or 
derivative action involving the Director, officer or employee. To the extent permitted by Jaw, the 
Board of Directors may enter into written indemnification agreements with individual Directors, 
officers and employees. MPR Missouri may also purchase liability insurance providing similar 
coverage for Directors, officers and employees. 

Section 11.1 Dissolution 

ARTICLE 11 
DISSOLUTION AND DISTRIBUTION 

MPR Missouri may be dissolved as of the last day of any MPR Missouri fiscal year upon a 
vote oftwo-thirds (2/3) of all Member Representatives. 

Upon the dissolution of MPR Missouri, the then current Board of Directors shall take all 
actions which shall be necessary for the orderly winding down ofMPR Missouri's Programs and 
Services and for the completion ofMPR Missouri's dissolution and liquidation subject to the Act. 

41>-2•1 JQ I H>aJ29. l I 
J utlllnr~-2;!, -21Ht<J 

· j)\H.JU III~~~~ 

1-H?-.~~2.1! - liW 

19 

49 



Section 11.2 Distribution of Assets 

All net assets shall be distributed pro rata to the Membe~ in g od standing, of the 
respective programs as of the last day of MPR Missouri's last full fi scal year prior to the decision 
to dissolve and to any fonner Members which may have retained the right to distribution of assets 
pursuant to a written agreement of withdrawal prior to the date of the decision to dissolve. Such 
net assets shall be distributed, separately by Program, by calculating the relative percentage of the 
total Program premium contributions for each Program paid by each Member during MPR 
Missouri's last full fiscal year prior to dissolution and multiplying the net assets by that 
percentage. 

Distribution of the remaining Workers' Compensation Program assets shall be determined, 
as provided by law, by the Missouri Division of Workers' Compensation. 

ARTICLE 12 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 12.1 Intergovernmental Contract 

--· These Bylaws shall constitute an intergovernmental contract among the Members 
and MPR Missouri. Nothing in these Bylaws shall be inconsistent with, or cause any Member to 
violate, any constitutional or statutory provision which prohibits political subdivisions from 
becoming indebted in an amount exceeding in any one year the income and revenue provided for 
such year plus any unencumbered balances from previous years. 

Section 12.2 Governing Law 

---These Bylaws shall be subject to, and governed by, the laws of the State of 
Missouri, including specifically the Act. 

Section 12.3 Binding Effect 

-- ·--These Bylaws shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, the parties 
hereto and their respective successors or assigns, provided, however, that a Member may not 
assign its rights or delegate its duties without MPR Missouri's prior written consent. 

Section 12.4 Disputes 

In the event of any dispute hereunder which results in litigation, the prevailing 
party in such litigation shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses of such 
litigation. Any action against MPR Missouri by a Member shall be brought only in the county in 
which MPR Missouri's principal office is located. 

Section ll.S Severability 

---These Bylaws are expressly declared to be severable, and in the event that any 
article, provision, clause or other part of these Bylaws is declared invalid or unenforceable by a 

4!-.24-JJ,)l\-{•'WU-1 
J1inuni)'-J;:t., ,Wll9 

1-hltiUili"'ll 2 
~. '). l!C)2 ..() • <) ~ 

20 

50 



court of competent jurisdiction, such action or unenforceability shaH not affect the validity or 
enforceability of any other article, provision or clause. 

Secdon 12.6 Amendment 

--These Bylaws may be amended by approval of the vote of two-thitid's (2/3} of the 
Member Representatives present at any annual membership meeting or special membersfuip 
meeting cal1ed for that purpose. Only amendments recommended by the Board ofDN-ectors shall 
be considered for adoption. 

---A copy and an explanation of all recommended amendments stating the reasons 
and impact of each proposed amendment shall be sent to all Member Representatives. by certified 
mail, no later than ten (1 0) days prior to the meeting date. 

---Any amendment to these Bylaws shall take effect immediately or at the time 
specified in the amendment. Such amendments shall be binding upon all Members wEthout further 
action by MPR Missouri or the Members. 

Section 12.7 Repeal of Prior Bylaws 

------Effective July l, 2009, and contingent upon the commencement of op.eratioos of 
Midwest Public Risk of Kansas, a Kansas not for profit corporation ("MPR K.ansas:j, and the 
imp lementation of a Risk Sharing Agreement between MPR Missouri and MPR Kattsas, these 
Bylaws shall repeal and replace all previous amendments or editions of these Bylaws including, 
but not limited to, the "MARCIT Bylaws' ' effective November 3, 2006. 

--- If MPR Kansas fails to commence operations on or before the close of business on 
June 30, 2009, these amended Bylaws shall be nuiJ and void and the November 3, 2066 "MARCIT 
Bylaws" shall remain in full force and effect. 

4-8-24--l'H 1- roiJ,?.IU-~ 

.lanuuty 12-, ~~)()Q 
T,""Uillt!JH ·2 
48J.!'-&22J!..:l!IID9.:> 

21 

51 



AGREEMENT AND EXECUTION 

The Member acknowledges that it has read and agrees to be bound by all terms and 
conditions of these Bylaws as a contract among MPR Missouri and its Members. By the execution 
of these Bylaws by the Member, the individual so executing acknowledges that these Bylaws have 
been duly accepted and authorized by all necessary and appropriate action of the governing body 
ofthe Member. The Member's participation as a Member ofMPR Missouri shall not be effective 
unless and until either a copy of the minutes documenting a majority vote or Resolution of the 
governing body of the Member granting authority to execute these Bylaws is delivered to MPR 
Missouri and is attached hereto. 

Member 

Signed 

AbSI· (_,T'I M~\\~gv--
Title 

Date 

MPR Missouri 

~ 
Signed: 

fnPR Mo cJno.,r 
Title 

1-l-lto 
Date' 

[AGREEMENT AND EXECUTION PAGE TO BYLAWS} 

MPR Missouri Bylaws 
July 1, 2016 

22 

52 



SECTION II 
G 

53 



CITY OF BEL TON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2016 DIVISION: Engineering 

COUNCIL: D Regular Meeting IZJ Work Session D Special Session 

[ ] Ordinance [ ] Resolution ID Consent Item D Change Order J [ ] Motion 
D Agreement D Discussion IIZJ FYI/Update [g) Presentation I D Both Readings 

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 
City Council has discussed and approved multiple items for the 1551h Street Widening project over the 
last few years. As the start of construction is approaching, staff believed it would be an opportune time 
to reflect the progress so far and provide some details for moving forward. Staff will present on the 1551

h 

Street Widening and MoDOT's interchange project 

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION: 
None at this time. 

BACKGROUND: 
The 1551h Street Project has been in the works since at least 2012 when an application was submitted for 
the Surface Transportation Program (STP) funding source through Mid-America Regional Council 
(MARC) and MoDOT. In 2013, the Cities of Belton and Grandview were notified that they were 
awarded the funding and entered into an intergovernmental agreement in order to identify 
responsibilities for administering the project. In 2014, City Council entered into the preliminary design 
engineering contract with Wilson & Company. In 2015, City Council entered into: the final design 
engineering contract with Wilson & Company, property acquisition agreements, and started acquiring 
property necessary for the improvements. In 2016, the project progressed and design was complete, all 
property was acquired, three residential parcels were demolished, and the project was advertised for bid. 
Construction is anticipated to begin in January of 2017 and the project is expected to be complete in 
December 201 7. 

IMPACT/ANALYSIS: 
N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
None at this time. 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
NIA 

54 
1:\Agenda ltems\2016\120616-WS\155th St presentation\ I. I 55th Street Presentation Council Info Sheet WS 12.06.16.doc 



Obiective 

To brief City Council on the history and current status 

of the 155th Street Widening Project 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

55 

12/1/2016 

1 



2012 

o 2015/ 2016 SUFRACE 

TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM (STP) 

FUNDING APPLICATION SUBMITTED 

20 13 

o 2015/ 2016 SUFRACE o BELTON AND GRANDVIEW ENTER 

TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM (STP) INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDING APPLICATION APPROVED AGREEMENT 

BY THE COMMITTEE, FHWA, AND 

MODOT 

56 

12/1/2016 

2 



2014 

o COMPLETED REQUEST FOR 
QUALIFICATIONS FOR 
ENGINEERING: WILSON & 
COMPANY WAS SELECTED 

o STARTED PRELIMINARY DESIGN 
WITH WILSON & COMPANY 

o HELD FIRST PUBLIC MEETING 
DISCUSSING PROJECT IN GENERAL 

2015 

155m STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
1-4910 Koolud<y Rood 

OPEN HOUSE PUBLIC MEETING 
Bellon City Hall Anne>< 

520 Main Street 
Belton, Missouri 

Thui'Way, September 4, 2014 
5:30 PM to 6:30 PM 

o COMPLETED PRELIMINARY DESIGN o HELD UTILITY COORDINATION 

o MADE PROGRESS TO FINAL 
DESIGN WITH WILSON & 
COMPANY 

o HELD SECOND PUBLIC MEETING 
DISCUSSING ROW IMPACTS 

o CONTINUED COORDINATION 
WITH MODOT AND MARC STP 
COMMITIEE 

MEETINGS 

1:1 KCPL 

1:1 AIT 

1:1 MISSOURI GAS ENERGY 

1:1 JACKSON COUNTY PWSD #1 

o STARTED PROPERTY ACQUISITION 

1:1 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS 

1:1 DM MILLIN 

1:1 ORRICK & ERSKINE 

57 

12/1/2016 

3 



2016 

o COMPLETED PROPERTY 
ACQUISITION 

a 43 PROPERTY OWNERS 

o DEMOLISHED THREE RESIDENTIAL 
STRUCTURES IN GRANDVIEW 

a DALE BROTHERS 

o SUPPLEMENTED THE BELTON AND 
GRANDVIEW 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

2017 
NOTICE TO PROCEED: JANUARY 201 7 

58 

o COMPLETED DESIGN 

o SOLICITED BIDS FOR THE 
PROJECT 

COMPLETION: DECEMBER 2017 

12/1/2016 

4 



12/1/2016 

Proiect Overview 

Bidding Results 

Total (Base Bid + Bid 
Contractor Base Bid Bid AltA Bid Alt B A It A + Bid A It B) 

VF Anderson Builders 
$2,704,504.45 $130,518.90 $98,365.00 $2,933,388.35 

LLC 

Radmacher Brothers 
$2,958,863.50 $1 22,731.80 $138,932.80 $3,220,528.10 

Excavating 

Miles Excavating $3,180,628.82 $128,901.25 $181,330.88 $3,490,860.95 

Pyramid Excavating 
$3,222,350.95 $122,368.10 $98,966.00 $3,443,685.05 

and Construction 

Midwest Heavy $3,244,437.85 $121,632.10 $150,01 0.00 $3,516,079.95 

JM Fahey $3,330,985.45 $1 05,849.35 $1 38,145.87 $3,57 4, 980.67 

Ami no Brothers $3,479,488.50 $133,414.70 $1 39,154.20 $3,752,057.40 

Engineer's Estimate $4,684,644.00 $251,751.50 $103,396.00 $5,039,791.50 

59 5 



12/1/2016 

Financial Impact 

Expenditures 

Description I Bellon Grandview MoDOT Total 

Engineering 

(Design and $338,84 3.50 $338,843.50 $0 $677,687.00 
Const ruction) 

Property Acquisition 
(Appraisal, Negotiation, $48,472.42 $48,472.42 $387,779.38 $484,724.23 
Easements and ROW) 

I 
Demolition i $4,581.18 $12,560.58 $36,649.44 $53.791. 20 

Construction I $293,338.84 $293,338.84 $2.771,139.50 $2,933,388.35 

Total $685.235.94 $693,215.34 $2,771,1 39.50 $4,149,590.78 

MoDOT: up to $4,37 5,800 

Belton revenues include: Street Impact Fees & Water Impact Fees 

Detour Plan 

60 6 



12/1/2016 

MoDOT Project - Divergeabout 

NOTICE TO PROCEED: FEBRUARY 2017 COMPLETION: DECEMBER 2017 

MoDOT Detour Plan 

61 7 



Moving Forward _ ...................... .. 
o 11/22 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

c 1 sr READ CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING -WILSON 

c 1 sr READ CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING - TERRACON 

o 12/6 WORKING COUNCIL MEETING 

c THIS PRESENTATION 

o 12/13 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

c 2ND READ CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING- WILSON 

c 2ND READ CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING - TERRACON 

c BOTH READS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD- YF ANDERSON BUILDERS 

c BOTH READS MODOT FUNDING AGREEMENT? 

Questions? 

62 

12/1/2016 

8 



SECTION II 
H 

63 



CITY OF BEL TON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2016 

COUNCIL: D Regular Meeting 

I D Ordinance 0 Resolution 
I D Agreement C8J Discussion 

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 

1:8:] Work Session 

0 Consent Item 
0 FYI/U_pdate 

DIVISION: Engineering 

D Special Session 

0 Change Order 0 Motion 
0 Presentation 0 Both Readings 

Development of the FY2018-2022 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) is underway and a draft version 
of the summary tables and map are attached. Individual project sheets are available upon request. 

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION: 
None at this time. 

BACKGROUND: 
The past two year's CIPs are available on the City's website at the following web address: 
http://www. belton.org/index.aspx?nid=481 
( www.belton.org/ Departments/ Public Works) 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Map of projects and CIP summary tables 

!:\Agenda Items\2016\120616-WS\done\CIP\1 Draft CIP Co~~il Info Sheet.doc 



N 
N 
0 
<)I 
CX) 
or-
o 
N 
>u.. 



FY2018-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

Projects with Funding Secured $1,784,202 $4,117,468 $4,038,000 I $800,000 I $1,700,000 I $0 I $0 I $12,439,670 

0\ 
0\ 

I Partially funded Projects $164,000 $1,880,000 $1,620,000 I $1,841,000 $2,063,050 $2,286,203 $17,298,000 I $58.742.000 I p 

Projects without Funding I $0 I $9,969,000 $9,562,000 l $16,680,000 $1,470,000 $1,470,000 I $52,329,000 I $110,848,957 I N 

Totals I $1,948,202 I $15,966,468 $15,220,000 I $19,321,000 $5,233,050 $3,756,203 I $69,627,000 I $182,030,627 

DRAFT 12-2-16 



FY2018-2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

$2,771.140 I STP 

-
$693,215 

I 
GrJndview 

T-2 

I 
l SS"' StreetWidemnaProject lilnd4 Sl,l32,202 $1,017,188 $4,149,590 

$587,236 SrreetlmpartFees(l23) 

0\ 
-.1 $98,000 WaterlmpacrFees(46ll 

\ I I 
$459.000 I Belton Cass Reli!ional 

T-4 I State Highway 58 and VHighwav 

' $50,000 $50,000 $800,000 $900,000 
Intersection Improvements 

r.s I MullenRoadWidening-Phasel ' 5302,000 $310,000 53,988,000 $4,600,000 

$66,000 Belton Cass Regional TOO 

... , I Br:1ton NO)UI I . I $l00,000 $155,080 $455,080 $324,080 .,. 

$65,000 Parks(220) 

$95,000 I C;,$5County ]City to ton tribute engineering and half of 

SW-6 ClcvelandAvenueCulvertWideninc 

I 
3 

I 
$50,000 

I 
$130,000 

I I I I I I 
$180,000 

T•"" I $12,439,670 

DRAFT 12-2-16 



T-1 I Street Recon!.tructron Program CityWide $1,000,000 $1,200,000 

T-9 I MullenRoadWidening-~hase2 • $82,000 

T-12 I NorthCassConnector 4 $82,000 

T(J.. 

I 
State H1ghway 58 and Powell ParkwAy 

4 
lr'lter~eetlonlmprovemenls 

co 

T•lS I 171rd Street U.tension 4 

T~16 I Larkspur Powell Connector 4 . 

,., I 81!1-RayC:onnector Trail 1 $4BO,OOO 

FY2018·2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

$1,<100,000 $1,600,000 $1,800,000 I $22,000,000 

$8,210,000 $8,292,000 

$6,607,000 $6,689,000 

$811,000 $811,000 

$470,000 I $470,000 

$1,1.00,000 $1,200,000 

$480,000 

ra I 558,742,000 

Varies 

I I 
I $150,000 I 

S.treetfund{22S} 

BeltonC.usReg•onaiTDD 

Belton CassReglcnaiTDD 

De<~oelc!pu 

Belton Cass Regional TOO 

Developer 

j rUI!CiontiiCOft!rlv,tratJponperfotmanceofTODand 

mw«lh~$150,000/sofrcommtt~r, l 

is contingent upon performance ot TDD 

DRAFT 12·2-16 



0\ 
\!) 

SW·l 

SW·2 

JW-t 

Stormwiltet lnln$1tuaUI'e Recom.uuu.ion 
Program 

L3cy EstateJ. SlcrmwaLer lm~rove~nts 

Summer~! Hills Stormwater l~s 

(C)-I I WaterlrneCcnnection(oldSouti1vlew) 

' 0<) I Hol~s ~ndSC!SilnltarvMwer 

FY2018·2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

~ 

M 

TU S110,B48,9S7 

DRAFT 12-2-16 




	I.	CALL WORK SESSION TO ORDER 
	II.	ITEMS FOR REVIEW AND DISCUSSION
	A.	Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding with Raymore on the ownership, operations, and maintenance of Hwy 58 between Clint Dr. and Kentucky Rd. 
	Paperwork 

	B.	Show-Me Heroes Program
	Paperwork 

	C.	Show Me PACE Program
	Paperwork 

	D.	Review of October 2016 financial report
	E.	Report by the Park Department
	F.	Review of Midwest Public Risk (MPR) Bylaw revisions
	Paperwork 

	G.	Presentation and update on the 155th Street project
	Paperwork 

	H.	Review of the draft FY2018-2022 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
	Paperwork 

	III.	ADJOURN WORK SESSION

